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we go the extra mile for customers
making shopping better, simpler, cheaper
in every store, in every country

in which we operate

B witle halps

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

GROUP SALES

+11.5%
2003 2002 UNDERLYING GROUP PROFIT BEFORE TAX'
Group sales (£m) + I 4 . 7%

{including value added tax) 28,613 25,654
Underlying pre-tax profit! (£m) 1,401 1,221 GROUP PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Pre-tax profit{£m) 1.361 1,201 ‘ + I 3 . 3 %
Underlying diluted earnings ‘
per share! (p) 13.98 12.14 UNDERLYING DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE!
Diluted earnings per share (p) 13.42 11.86 + I 5 . 2%
Dividend per share (p) 6.20 5.60
N DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Group enterprise value {{m)
(market capitalisation plus net debt) 16,896 21,250 + | 3 . 2 %

! Excludi I d | of fixed . :
lnt:;ra‘tr}gnn?os‘t::sazg gcii?doviiall :mg:'etis:tsisne;\t.s DIVIDEND ,.F_ER SHARE

+10.7%
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operating and financial review

This operating and financial review analyses the performance of the Tesco Group

in the financial year ended 22 February 2003. It also explains other aspects of

the Group's results and operations, including strategy and risk management.

GRGUP SUMMARY

2003 2002 Change

£m £m
Graup sales -
{including value added tax) 28,613 25654 HLS
Underlying profit en
ordinary activities
before taxt 1401 1221 4.7
Profit on ordinary activities
before taxation 1,361 1,201 133
Underlying diluted
earnings per share! 1398p 12.14p 15.2
Dividend per share 620p 5.60p 10.7

UK PERFORMANCE

2063 2002 Change
£m £m %

Sales
(including value added tax)

23407 21,685 739.

Underlying operating profitt 1,297 1213 69

REST OF EUROPE PERFORMANCE

2003 2002 Change
%

£m £m
Sales
(including valug added tax) 3032 2475 225
Underlying operating proficc 41 90 567

AS5IA PERFORMANCE

2003 2002 Change

£m m %
Sales
{inctuding value added tax} 2174 1,494 45.5
Underlying operating profit’. 7 2% 1448

t Excluding net loss on disposal of fixed assets, integration casts
and goodwill amortisation,

GROUP STRATEGY Our strategy Is simple and
the four key ejements remain the same: strong UK
core business; non-focd growth; retailing services
and international.

This customer focused strategy has again
delivered strong results by bringing value, choice and
convenience to millions of customers every week.

GROUP PERFORMANCE Group sales including VAT

increased by |1.5% to £28,613m (2002 - £25,654m).

Group underlying profit on ordinary activities
before tax (excluding net loss on disposal of fixed
assets, integration costs and goodwill amortisation)
increased by 14,7% to £1,4CG1m. In the year, we
acquired the T&S and HIT businesses. The impact
was to increase underlying profit by a net £1m.

Group capital expenditure was £2,134m
(2002 - £2,027m). UK capital expenditure was
£.1,228r, including £558m on new stores and
£335m on extensions and refits, Total international
capital expenditure was £906m, £527m in Asia
and £379m in Eurcpe. In the year ahead, we forecast
Group capital expenditure te be around £2.2bn.

The Group continued to generate strong
operating cash flows. Net cash inflow fram
operating activities increased by 17% to £2375m
(2002 — £2,038m).

Group net debt in the year increased by
£1177m to £4,737m (2602 - £3,560m), including
the additional debt used for the purchase of HIT
{£3%91m) and acquired T&S debt (£155m). Gearing
increased to 73% (2002 — 64%).

GROUP INTEREST AND TAXATION Net interest
payable was £180m (2002 — £153m), of which
£10m relates to the additional debt taken on for
the T&S and HIT acquisitions,

Tax has been charged at an effective rate of
30.5% (2002 ~ 30.9%), Prior to accounting for the
net loss on disposal of fixed assets, integration costs
and goodwill amortisation, our underlying tax rate
was 29.6% (2002 - 30.4%).

SHAREHOLDER RETURNS AND DIVIDENDS
Underiying difuted earnings per shars {excluding
net loss on disposal of fixed assets, integration costs
and goodwill amortisation) in¢reased by |15.2% to
13.98p (2002 — 12.14p),
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The Board has proposed a final dividend of 4.33p
(2002 - 3.93p) giving a total dividend for the year
of 620p (2002 - 5.60p). This represents an increase
of 10.7% and dividend cover of 225 times,

Total recognised gains and losses in the year
were £968m (2002 — £842m), comprising profit
for the year of £946m and gains on foreign
currency tramslation of £22m. )

Group shareholders’ funds, before mincrity
interests, increased by £986m. This was due to
retained profits of £503m, new shares issued less
expenses of £461m, and gains on foreign currency
translation of £22m. As a result, return on
sharehclders' funds was 22.3%.

Tetal shareholder return, which is measured as
the percentage change in the share price plus the
dividend, has been {0.7% over the last five years,
compared to the FTSE 100 average of (26.8)%.
Ower the last three years it has been 7.0%, compared
to the FTSE 100 average of (35.1)%. In the last
year, total shareholder return inTesco was (31.9)%
compared to the FTSE 100 average of (24.0)%.

UK Sales grew by 7.9% to £23,407m (2002 -
£21,685mj). Of this, 4.1% came from existing stores
and 3.8% from net new stores, which includes
0.7% relating to the acquisition of T&S Stores PLC.

UK underlying operating profit was 6.9%
higher at £1,297m (2002 ~ £1,213m) with an
operating margin held flat at 6.0%.

The tesco.com operations achieved sales
of £447m (2002 - £356m) and excluding USA
and South Korea start-up losses, made a profit
of £12m (2002 — £0.4m),

As part of cur store development programme
we cpened 62 new stores comprising six Extras,
2} Superstores, cne Metro and 34 Express
stores. Including extensions and refits, we opened
). 4m sq ft of new space and expect to open -
a further |.4m sq ft in the coming year

During the year we purchased T&S Stores PLC,
a leading convenlence retailer Total consideration
was £366m, which consisted of £358m of issued
shares and £8m of other acquisition costs. The
convenience market is a £20bn market in the UK
and this acquisition increases our share from 1%
to 5%.T&S has §7¢ convenience cutlets. We plan

to convert 450 to the Tesco Express format over
the next three to four years bringing the Tesca
range and value offer to many more customers
in neighbourhood |ocations.

REST OF EUROPE In the Rest of Europe sales
rose by 22.5% to £3,032m (2002 — £2,475m)
and contributed an underlying operating profit
of £141m, up from £30m last year

Sales in the Republic of Ireland grew by 8%,
We have 77 stores, giving us | 7m sq ft, and have
plans for a further six stores in 2003/04,

in Central Europe we opened |8 hypermarkets
in the year giving us 83 in total. This gives us total
space in Central Europe of 8.9m sq ft.

The acquisition of HIT, a chain of Polish
hypermarkets, during the year has deubled the
size of our Polish operation and are now market
leader. Total consideration was cash of £400m.

ASIA In the year, our Asian businesses had sales
of £2,174m (2002 — £1,494m}, up 45.5% on the
previous year and made an underlying operating
profit of £71m (2002 — £29m),

Cur business in Thailand, comprising 42
hypermarkets, had strong sales growth of 21%.
We currently have 4.8m sq ft of selling space
in Thailand which will increase to 54m sq ft by
the end of next year

In South Korea we opened seven hypermarkets,
giving us 21 in total, with sales up 66%.

In Talwan we have a total of three
hiypermarkets. Expansion has been slower than
planned but we are now seeing opportunities
to buy sites at lower prices.

In Malaysia we opened our first three
stores this year. The performance of the stores
is encouraging and we have a good number
of planning applications in the pipeline.

JOINT YENTURES AND ASSOCIATES Our total
share of profit before goodwill amortisation, from
joint ventures and associates was £72m compared
to £42m fast year. Our share of Tesco Personal
Finance pre-tax profit, post minority interests has
grown significantly to £48m (2002 - £20m).

TESCO PLC

| year 3years 5 years
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Operating and ﬂnanCial rEVieW conhnued

FINANCIAL RISKS AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT
The teasury funcion & mandated by she Board
o ranage he Bnancial raks that anse in relaton
cis

the functions polides and operating parameters

The Board establishes

W undeclying busness nee

ancd routinely rewews 1y activities, which are alse
sebiecd o repular audi. The funchion does not
cperate as a profit centre and the undertaking

of sprosdative 19

b st permitied.

The main financial risks faced by the Group

refgle o the availlandity of funds o meet business
needs, the rivk of defaudt by counterparties to
financial transacuons (Credie skl and Ducnations
i ieterest and foreign wehange vates. These rsks
are managed as described beinw The batinge sheet
pasitions at 22 Feliruary 200¥ are representative

of the postions throughoul the yeur

FUNDING AND LIQUIRITY Tha Group finances
HE operations by a combination of retained profits,
fong and mediurm-lerim debl caprial markel vsues,
commencial papern, Bank borrowings and leases,
The objective is 10 ensure continuity of funding.
The policy 5 ko smoeolh the debt maturity profile,
Lo arrange funding ahead of requirernents and

1o maintain sufficent undripem committed bank

{acHiti

and 8 strong Credit ratiog 5o that mawring
detat miay be refinanced g i falls due.

The Groupy long-term Qedis rating from
Moody's was reduced from Aa3 to At dunog the
year, following the ncrease in debt which resuited

from the acepisition of HIT An additional 1

rating from Standand & Poor's of A+ was introduced.

New funding of £2.002m was arcanged inciuding
nn rew cornrittes Bank facibbes of £347m and

am-teerrs rotes of 21 385m matunng between
2008 and 2033 AL the year end, net debi wag
{4 T3P {20002

debit malurity was nine years (2002 - six yoars).

- £3560m) and the averags

INTEREST RATE RISK MANAGEMENT T

ORETE B0 I Cur expasure (O nemEses in

iderest rates, Forwarid rate agregments, interest

rake swaps, caps and coliars are wsed 1o achieve
the desived mix of Tixad and foating rate debt.
The podicy 15 10 fix or cap a micirmum of 0% of

actiat and projected debt interest cosis Porward

start miarest cale swaps and rwarg rate

srrenments are used 10 manage projected debt

il

interest costs where appropriate. Al Lhe yoar ¢
£3.600, 55% of net debt was o fiked rate fprm
{2007 - £1 b, 465 with & further £135m, 3% of

et debt collwed as detalled in note 20 Fixed rate

debt gk, 427 of funding linked 10 the Retail

Price Index {2002 ~ £372m). This debt rediges
nterest risk by dversifying our funding portlciio.

The balance of our debt i m Boating rate form

The average rate of mterest paid Gurng the
ver was 57 2007 - 3% A T rse in UK
interest rates would reduce profis before tax by

less thar 1% Changes in interest rates o othar

currergigs would have no ant impact on

Croup profiv.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK MANAGEMENT
Cur principal objective 15 10 reduce the risk w
shortterm profis of exchange rate volatifity.
Trarsactional currency exposures that couid

sigreficanagly wnpract the profit and loss acooubl ane

hedped, typscally using forward purchases or sahes

of forelgn currendies. We rnshile overseas profits

o slerd

7 b averag hange rates which we
o not seek 1o hedge We hedge the balance

shees by borrowing {either duectly or v foreign

exchange s ching currendigs
where thig s cost effective. Our objectives are o
anntae o fow cost of borrowing and retain some
potental for curvencerelated appreciation widle
partaily hedgng against cuerency deprecialion,

&

DPuring the year currency movements hat

rrninial impact or profits and increasad the nat

(2007 - D1 2mvoncrease). AL the year end forward
e

were outstanding (2002 - £3V7m). See note 200

forepn o oo £240m

oy pLrchases equiv

CREDIT RISK The obiective is 1o reduce the rigk

of s arsmg from default by parties to firmncial

transaclicos. The risk s managed by spreading
financial transactions across an approved Bt of
counterpartes of high credit quality The Group's
positions with these counterparties and ther

credit ratings are routinely mentored.




TESCO PERSONAL PINANCGE {TPF) TPF len:

predarmitaily (o mdvidaals through s v

LNEQCIE RS parstng s preddicts, Riss

p F!‘z(inagg‘d by
adopting mdustry bast practices and crawing Moan the

expertas and systems of the Roysl Bank of Scotland,

As g reeat TPE nave developad a portiolio of oredis

prociucls wathy 8rong assed Guaity

INSURANCE Wa have taken the deasion 10 purchase Ass

£x,

Farvurgs and Combaned Latslity protection from the open

Irsuranoe market 2 astraohe lovel anbye The risk not

<

transforred to the msurance markst s retained within the

PRI

i 10 vanous bmits, with the batance seif insured
ore g maltinational bass By use of our captive misurince

cormpany, Testo Irsirane

Limited, Guerrsey (Assets!

FarpingsiCombi

e Labity), Subsequent 10 the year end

directors’ report

The Doectors present their annual regort to shareholders

on the affaies of the Group, togsther with he audited

consoidited fnandal statements of ibe Group for the

5% weeks ended 27 Febrasry 20073

FRINCIPAL ACTIVITY ANE BUSINESS REVIEW [he principal
activity of the Group 5 the aneration of food stores and
associted avibes in the UK Repy 7 of Ireland, France.

Hisrga

y, Poland, Creen Bepublic, Siovakia, Trhatland, South

Kores

awant gndd Malaysin A review of the business

s cortaned i the Anraal Review and Summary Financial

Statemaernt J00T which is published separately and, together
with this document, comprisay the full Teseo PLC Annaal

Report and Financial Statermends,

SROUP RESULTS Group saley inclucing VAY rose by £2.55%m

£

5%

to £2561 3m, representing a SO
underlying proflt on ordingry activibies befare taxation net

logi on disposal of Txed assets, integration costs and poodwill

arrortsation war LAY o campared with £ 220 fr the

previous vear an increase of 4% Indading net low oo

disposal of fixed assets, wiegration Costs and goodwil

amorination, Group proit on srdinary acieatios belore

I ity has been transferved (o 4 new captive

surance company, Vakant Jesurance Company Levited, ROL

PENSIONS Tesco policy 5 (o bage pension funding decssiang

wn A threeeyearky acluarial valzanen, The 3 il ackuara
valuation of the oo PLO Pension Schame was carmed out
as at 3 Ma

te wnrrease funding levels The res

s 2007 This korrned the busis of owr dedision

of the valuaton can

be searn it note 26{a),

by line walh arounhng standards, 3 separate FRS Y

waiuation has been performed as al the Group year end

date. The FRS 17 ¢

aoures can be faund i ot 26061

OTHER INFORMATION Adailional finunoa! and
Praws R

o presemations can e accesied on our website,

nan-finsecal in A0, NG IITING 5 aned year

whens fesCo.connfuorporatemio

taxation wis £8381m. The amount allocated to the employee

profit-chaving scheme this year was £5 T 38 against L4

Gt yoan Aftar provson for tax of L4310 5mminerity interosts

of i and dvidends, paid and proposed, of £443m, profit

retatned or the Bnancial vear armounted o £503m,

BivipeNRps The Divectors recornmend the payment of o fing
dividend of 4 33p per ordinary dhave to be pad on 27 June
20073 10 membars on the Register at the cdlose of business

on 33 Aart 2003 Together with the sterim dradend of 187p
per ardinary share paid in MNovember 2007, the total for the

wili be 6200 compared with 560p for the previaus year,

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS Uantsl expenditure amounted

1o 220 Mo comparen with £2.027m the previous yoar

iy the Dirpctors opinion, the properties of e Group

3 ragrker valoe 0 excess of the book vilue of £1084%5m

wchided i these fironowl statements.

SHARE CAPITAL The authorsed and ssued sharg apitat of

the company togethar with detads of ihe shares iswued during

e, ace shown e note 23 Lo the Boancial statements

the per:

ARV




directors’ report conines

COMPANY'S SHAREHOLDERS The company is not aware
of any ordinary sharehoiders with inferests of 3% or more,

IMRECTORS AND THEIR INTERESTS The names and
bingraphical detals of the present Directors are set out in the
separately published Annual Review and Summary Financial
Statement 2003,

Mr R S Agen Mr R F Chase {appointed during e yeard,
M} A Gardiner Me AT Higginson and Mr D £ Reid retire
from the Board by rotation and being eligible offer themseives
for re-elaction,

The service contracts of Me R 5 Apen Mr AT Higginson
and Mr 3 € Reid are terminable o0 two years notice from
e company, Mr R F Chase ard Mr | A Gardiner do nat
have service Comtracts,

The imerests of Directors and 1helr immediate famiies
i tne shares of Tesco PLC, along wath detaits of Directors’
share OPUONS, ars contained it the repert of the Directars
Oft rEMUNETALoN ey out on pages 12 1o 21

AL ng time during the year ¢id any of the Directors
have a material interest ir any signihcant contract with the
company or any of 15 subsidiaries.

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES The Group depends on the siolis
ard cormmitrnent of 115 employees in order 1o achieve 13
olnectves. Staff at every level are encouraged 1o make
ther fulless possible contrbution t¢ Tesco success.

A key business pronty is 10 provice First Class Service
o the customer, Ongong training programmes seek 10
ersure that empioyees understand the Group's custamer
service objectives and sirve to achieve them.

The Group’s selection, training. development and
promoticn pohties ersure equa oaparunities for alt
empioyees repardiess of genden marita statys, race.
gge or disabiity Al decisions are based on mernit

interral communications are designed o ensure that
empioyess are well informed about the business of the
Group. These include a staff maegazine called Tesco Today,
videos and staff brnefing sassions, "

Staff artiudes zre frequently researcihed through surveys
and store viss, and management seeks 1o respond posdively
o the needs of employees.

Empicyees ere encourages Lo become imvalved in the
firancial performance of the Group through a variety of
schemes, pancipaliy the Tesco emplovee profit-sharing
schgme, the savings-reisted share option scheme {Save-Ag-
You-Earn) and the Partnership Share Plan {Buy-As-You-Earn}.

POLITICAL AND CHARITABLE DOMNATIONS There were

no political donations {2002 - nil), During the year the Group
mane contributions of £31,2B2 i the farm of sponsorshis
for paltical events and one poltically affiliated think-tank
fLabour Party -~ £2,400; Conservative Party ~ £4.3%4; Liberal
Dermograt Party — £6.407 Scotlish National Party - £7.143;
Plaid Cymru ~ £1,000; Fabian Society - £2.938}

SUPPLIER PAYMENT poLicY Tesco PLC 5 a signatory 1o
the T8l Code of Prompt Payment, Copies of the Code may
se ottained from the CBL Centre Point, 103 New Oxford
Street. London WUTA 10U Payment terms and congitions
are agreed with suppliers in atvance.

Tesee PLOC has no trade creditors n 28 bakante shest,
The Group pays s creditors on a tmely basis which varies
according 16 the Trpe of product and territory in which the
suppliers operate.

GOING CONCERN | he Directors consider that the Group
and the company have adeduate resources to remain in
opargtion for the foresesabie fiture and nave therefore
conrtinged 10 adopt the going concern basis in preparing

the finarcial statements. As with 2l business forecasts, the
Directors statement canndt guarantee that the going concern
basis will remain appropriale given the inherent uncertainty
about future events,

auptTors Folowing the conversion of our auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers 10 a Limited Liabitity Partnership
(LLPY from | January 2003, PricewaterhouseCoopers resigned
ot 23 February 2003 and the Directors appointed s suceessor,
PricewaterhouseCoopars LEP as auditors. A resolution to
re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LUP a3 audtors of the
company wil be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING A separate circular

accompanyng the annual accoums explang the special
business 10 be considered at the Annual General Mesting

en 13 hine 2003,
\f N —
Y
Tesco PLC )

Repistered Number: 445790

By Qrder of the Board
Rowley Ager Secretar,
7 Apra 20063




corporate governance

STATEMENT OF APPLICATION OF PRINCIFLES OF THE
COMBINED tobE The Group 3 committed to Figh stendards
of torporate govarnance. T s statement describes the
manner in which the company has appiied the principles

set gut in the Combned Code or Corporate Governance

DIRECTORS AND THE BOARD The Boarg of Tesco PLE
comprises eight Executive Directars and six independent
Non-executive Directors. The Cnairman, Mr | A Garginer,

i an ndependent Non-axecutive Director who has a primary
responsibiiity of running the Boarg, The Chiefl Exscutive, Sir
Terry Leahy, has executive responsibiiities for the operations,
resuits and strategic deveiopm
of accountabillity and respons!

ent of the Group. Ciear drvisions

ity exist and operate effectively
for these positions. in addition, Me G F Pimiott is the senior
Nos-grecutive Director The Board ensures that rio one
individual o group dominates the decision-making process.
Since the yearend, the Board has announced 1y succession
plars fur the retivement of Mr | A Gardiner in Margh 2004,

The full Board meets at least ten titnes a year and
annually devotes Two gays 1o & conferancs with senigr
executives on longer-term planning, ghang consideration
both 1o the opportanities and risks of fiure strategy The
Board manages overall control of the Group's affairs by
the schadule of matters reserved for B3 decision in 5o far
as corporale guvernance :§ Loncerned, these include the
aporoval of financial statements, maior acguisitions and
disposals. authority levels for expenditure, treasury policies,
risk managernent, Group governance potices and succession
plans for serior executives,

To gnable the Board to make tonsidered decisions,
a writlen protozol exists anc has been communicaied to
SenIor maragers ensiring that relevant information is made
avaiabie 10 al Boare members in advance of Board rgetings,
Al Directory have access 1o the services of the Compary
Secretary and may take independent professional agvice at
the companys expense in the furtheranca of their dutios.

The need for Director training s reguiarly assessed
By the company. -

GOVERNANCE STRUCTWRES The following paragraphs
describe the Key goverrance Structurgs operating in the
Group under the overall direction of the Board.

Executive Committee The Board delegates dayao-day and
buginess management cortrol 1o the Executive Committes,
which comprises the Exeautive Directors. This meets formaily
every week and 18 decisions are (omrwnicated throughout
the Group on 3 regulae basis, The Executive Committee s
responsibie for impiementing Group policy, the manitaring
and performance of the business and reporting to the full
Board theregn,

Nominations Committes Appointments to the Board for
both Executive and Non-executive Directors arg the
responsibity of the Nominations Commitiee which is chaired
by Mz | A Gardiner ang whose members are set out in the
wbie on page

As exemplfied by the secion on Directars and their
interests within the Directors’ repart on pages 3 and é, the
company's Articles of Association ensure that on a rotaticnal
basis Directors resign every three years and, if they so desire
and are eigible, oifer themselves for re-election.

Remuneration Committee The Remuneration Comnattes,
composed entrely of Non-executive Divectors, is chaived by
Mr C L Allen, The members are sel out in the table on page | |
The responsitrlities of the Remuneration Cormmitiee, 1ogether
with an explanation of how it applies the Directors remuner-
atien principles of the Combined Code, are st out in the
repert of the Dirertors on remuneration on pages 12 10 21,

Audit Committee Tne Board has an Audit Committee,
chaired by Mr G F Pimiott and consisting enurgly of Nen-
executive Directars, which meets & minimum of three times
a year, Membersiip of the Audit Committee is set out in

the table on page 11, is terms of reference are reviewed
annually and represent current best practice. The Committee's
primary responsibidities include monitoring the system of
imernal control throughout the Group, approving the Group's
accounting policies and reviswing the irterim and aninual
financial statemems pefore submission 1o the Board. The
Commuttes will be undertaking an assessment of the Group's
position i relation to the Financial Reporting Coungil
pudelings for strengthening the Combined Code, issued
racantly & the ‘Smith Report, aithough 1 s believed thar

the Group already comply substantially with the proposals,
The review will also cover the role ang effectiveness of the
Non-executre Directors as sel oul in the ‘Higgs Report,




Corpo rate gove rNance continued

Compliance Committee The Complance Commlies ensures

that the Board ciecharpes its oblig

a{hpne 1o comply wiilh

secessary et and repalabions. 1 has established a schedu

for e rogatar review of the ‘fxm;;n opEralional aclvites

0 epsure compianice with accepled practices and polices.
The Cormmttes, comprisng two Bxenulve Diveciors and

o onembers oF sen Croanagerment nGrinally meets foupr

DTS 4 e

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT The Boad
sk

=

HERES

i responsnty o mternal cortrol ncluding

hanagerannt and sets approptiate polices havng regard 1o

(he obsectves of the Oroup Executive maragement has the

ol

arad maintenance of control syslems i gacordante with the

orsibalily for the idenuficaten

sealuation and management

ir

wmancial and eonefrancid risks and for the implementation

Boards polaes.

The Board, thraugh the Audit Commitioe, hag reviewed

the effacivenass of the oystarns of nterrst control for the

pocounting year and the period 1o the date of aspreoval of

the firancal staterments, sithou ”? i shouid be vaderstood

hat sueh systems ave d

sgned to provde reasonzbie b

nol absohile assurance againgt matorial o

AETANL Or 105

Internal control environment Tre Group operales an

tives-ciiven approach aimied at satishong it core
purpose that ransines e a rolling fre-year bu s

The plin covers both revenue and Capital expenditure and
¥

e the basis of busimess plans for all cur busnoss entities,
i this e Board, 1egether with momioning vegimes based

upen aur Stearing Wheel, agrees the anndal revenue and

capital budgets,

The Steering Wheel 5 the term used o descoribe Our

balanced sworenand approach, which we beliews is the best

Way 16 achieve resuits for owr sharsholders. 1t sets out a

broad range of Largels under quadrant headings of customars,

DpRrations, ;wupiez arsd finance. This alfows the business o be

aperated and monatored on a batanced basis widb due mgard

for alf stakehoiders. The Board undertakes o formal revmw

Gl progress an a guartarly basis and any resulling acions

considered aporopriate are communcated theoughaut

the business.

The capital nvestiment proseamime & suject 1o ormaised
review procedures requiring kay onieca 1o be met Al ngor
bt regare Dlaness cases to be prapared, normaly

CONETIE A Rnrn peried of fve years, Pastane

et

appraisals are 3iso carced out

Risk management progess At the hagliest fevel the Board

copsiders sratenc risk grery e b meels The bao-day

Board Corference, refurred 1o earber congiders whers fiure

apportunties and nsks e and heips shape Our Corporate

strategy going forwarnd Accountabiitias for manag

P

avonal visks are cieacly assigned to bne manage

imternal contrals have been developed over 3l visks in

with the risk appetite deterroined by the Board ared are

subnect 16 veview. Formal rish assessmngnts are carmed oul

reutinely throughout the business, Procadures exat to ensure

thal sgnificant risks and control Fadures are escalated (o
peruor masagement and the Board, sy necessary on a daily,

wankly and penodic basis.

Monitoring The maoritoring of strategic and operabions
vk are responabiities of the Board and bne managers
resptivery

The Boare maintains the Key Rak Fepster and considers
at thesr formal risk assessrments whethar

actions baing

i

taken o ebgation are sufficent.

The Intarnat Aedit Lnction

By eperates on a risk-based

approach helping managers with ther rise responsitaibes s
advising on appropriate contrals.

PricgwaternouseCoopers LLE owr external audiwor
contriute 4 further independent perspeciive o certam
aspects of the iternat finandial contrald system arising from
theis work, Independence is &m*:ﬁgthemefi by an agreemaent
1o rodate sadit partoers every e years The ergagernent

of gutditors s contidered annually by the Aadit Commitlee.

Annual staterents received from CEOs further support

the monitary CThese statements

of by subsicliary operations
confim it the Beard's governance poices have Deen
adopied b pracy

O

the wihole st

£l spirit

Cbe Al Comrmiies seeks 16 ensure that

Ent process prowides adagiate control

aver all maor Pisks 1 the Troup. This is aghieved through

consideratcn of ropulaee reperts from miermal and external

audn alorgside dstuisions with senior Managers.




Ohther speaabst funations within the Geoup, notatly Trading

L and Techranal and Company Secrerarias, provide

assurandce and winane on nealth and 9

fory reguisiory and

sthical and aowianmental miues,

Prompliance ang socid

g report ter Bndings on s repuiar bass 10

the Complance Commitiee.

Communication A programme of Comerirication exsts

andd i Constantly beng developed, W ensure thay of staff are

awdre of the parametsrs that constivle scceplable businesy

nance andd the sxpectations of the Board i manag

presades chear defyston ol the Gr TR EaY

goals, &c;mura:aaéimm s the scope of permitted actvitic

oh compames, executive fuirnens andd mdividust staff

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY The Board regards

Corporate Socid Responsitility [OSHY as an mtegral part

of th auecalt corporate goverrancs ramework and s fully
integrated N0 exENg management struckures and sysiems,
Therefore, the risk management policies, procedures and

montoring methads desribed above equatly appiy 10 our

CHR actbatios, ¥

uditg the managerent of o

aned ervironmeetal [SEEY risks.

Mary iwestors lake an nlerest in how COmpanies are
memagia‘-g ronefnancial risks as these can ander cartain

chroumstanegs, fave an snpadt on Sarehalder value, For
The Assomaton of Briish Insurers (AB bas

discionre gudeknes on social responsibiiy,

fing SEE matiers for wwistors and comparnies,

Last year we published cur first (SR Meview on our

wis e WA RESIGLG

1z the

s Lanee that Tesco has placed oo CHR over the past

comdmverylztivheips. This refle

10 years Fore detals of our U8R strategy can e found
the Tasee Corporate Soual Responsibility Review 2002/03

aned o0 our website,

b an ol STt RVISIBESLY L) SR Comimites

The CSR

i Covporate Affue

hat reets o minimars of four

£ 3 yean

Committee i chawret by the G

Divectoy wnd 125 memberstip © made up of sondr masnagers

from ol party of the bumress One of s obecives 15 1o
idertify threats and opporiunities for the comng

0 highlight ¢

Al U i

SEHEVEING g

has estyilshed a sl of C8R Yeay

Serformance dicators (P, and these KPE are usad 1o
track performiance gussterly snd annualiy The KFs {oed
mte the S

Ghectly tearing Wheed monit

HEF AR P L L e

earfier and thas contriute (o the overall moniwering of

uation by the Board

SR Commitige makes regular

regorts o the Bxecutive Bousrs on COR matters.

B CSRKPR and the related managemant system

ave avaiabis v the (SR Mewew 2002/03 snd an-ine.

thease !‘!iﬁ‘si%"ag

o cur TER vesponsbhties.
SR anse

farpely rebigated the SE

Customsr locus is Aa

T mast recest essmvient found thal conwols

1 the Buginess,

mental 1o delivering our ¢

e

way we manage tsk Al ouwr Business praztices contre

on sarving the customer and in meeting thase challenges we
recagnise aur responsitility ta deliver gualty products at the
right price.

Al compantes bave to face ethical diemmas in the
porreal course of busness.
Pri o

how wiz trest penpie.

O approarts comes from tne

Tesen Vahues st Whe standards we wish 1o

%
uphold in

These are supported by Codes of Stnics and govern the

relationstuns between Durseives and employees, supplers and

contractars. The Complance Commitiee regularyy maomtors

aeherence 1 these codes. The company s a signatory o the

1) Crde of Conduct and has mat fully i ohibgations for

smplemanting this Code,

i the lasl yeas we have introduced g Human Rights
..E i

without fear e will im PEilg?}'-'_\’.‘.

nobicy, ard "Protector Line’ - a confide

alephone helplne
for staff to raize Hisle cobgern
any aliegations of improprely

and take approoriate action as

secessary More detalls of the policy are avalsble in the (SR
Feoview 2003403
CSR i ajso

staff it helps morals

ar important factor i retardng and recruting

ang progranmes such as Charty of the

oar and Race foe Uife, encourags stall mvolvoment The Tesco

L

COR webiite, wwwilesCocomieyer

helps bas been oied

aduate receats 26 ong Tactor it ther choe of Tesco as

i ermnpliyer
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CO !"pO rate gO\le rNance convirues

Managing health and safery and supply chain standards
Healtn and safely slandards are very important the company
5 committed to providing a safe shapping and working
ervironment for customers, staff and cortraciors,

The company has established policies, procedures and
training 1o identify and minimise the risks inherent in a retail
ard distribution Susiness.

Tre safety of our products carres the highest
respensibiity and priority We have establshed, over many
years, s comprehensive due diigence process supported
tyy technical and product developrnent standards and
procedures. This assurance covers staffl training, providing

widance and asdaing suppliers to ensure they supply
quakity progucts for the Teseo brand,

We nave condugied a comprebensive risk analysis
of products, supobers and factories upon which our audit
programme is tased, Audaing is carried out on poth a
routing and urannounced basis.

Suppiy chain risis can include, for example, a failure
of standards relzting to product safety, quality, and animal
weiare and worker weifare,

Ye review regularty cur technical, due diigence and
crisis management nrocedures in the light of the latest
scignific research and expert opinion, 10 ersyre that these
risks are managed effactively.

We Use in-house experts as wall as external advisors
to Iook for and analyse emerging issues so that appropriate
acton can be taken.

RELATIONS WITH SHAREMOLDERS The Board aftaches a
high importance o maitaining good relationsnios with alt
shareholders and, primarily through the investor Relations
department, ensyres that shareholders are kept informed
of sgnificant company developments.

During the year, Exacutive Directors have met with 7 of
our isading shareholders representing over 53% of the issued
sharas of The company While the focus of dislogue is with
instimutional sharenolders to whom regular presemations are
mage on company direction, care 1§ exercsed to ensure that
any price-sensitive infarmation is released 1o all sharehciders,
institutonal angd private, al the same time n accordance with
the Financial Services Authority reguiresnents,

Tne Board regards the Annuai General Meeting a5 an
apporiunity 1o communicate directly with all sharenoiders
The whole Board attends the meeting and is avaiiabie to
angwar questions from shareholders present,

Bach year end, every shareholder may choose to
receive a ful Annual Report and Financial Statements
ar an asbreviated Annual Review and Summary Financia!
Staternent. At the halfl vear, ali shareholders receve an
interim Report. These reports, together with publicy-mad
trading staternents, are available on the Group’s website,
www lesco comicorporateinfe

PENSION FunDs The assets of the pension funds established
for the penefit of the Group's employees are heid separaiely
fram those of the Group, A trustee campany manages both
the Teseo PLC Pension Scheme and the remaining assets of
the Teseo PLC Money Purchase Pension Scheme,

The Tesco PLLC Pension Scheme is 4 defined benefit
sehame which has over 120,000 ¢contributory members
and nearly 10,000 persicners. The Trustes Company Board
comprises one Executive Direcion Mr RS Ager; four senior
managers and four members zppointed from staff and
pensieners. Management of the assers i delegated 1o a
numizer of ndependent fund managers. These fund managers
have discretion 10 invest n shares of Tesco PLC, but oniy 1o
the proportanal weighting of the shares i the total market,
Details of pens:on commitments arg set cul in nete 26
to the financial statements on pages 47 10 49,

PROVISIONS (N THE COMBINED COBE Throughout the
year anded 22 February 2003 the company has been in
complignce with ail of the Code Provisions set outin Section |
of the Combined Code on Corporate Governance, except as
with regard to provision B.1.7 on the tength of Directory
service agreernents. detads of which are sef oul in the report
of the Directors on remuneration on pages 12 20 21,
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Executive Diractars
Sit Terry Leahf S
RS Ager e e e e . .

My A Clarke

far MrOU Aller rgrived from the Audiy (oo

wes on 4 fune 2007

I M B Chase was aboonied 10 e Board ang the Mamingbons, Rarmuneration and Audit Sommintees on ¢ July 20800

PP

{2 MY Moral was appoiried 10 the Audic Committes aed the MNeranapars Committee on [ September 2002
{33 D v Erarnane was appoinied 10 the Remuneration Coreminize on 14 jure 2007

lgp M VY Melboure resired from U Board ang ity Commigess on 14

¢ 2802 To that date, be was Thpirmian

of the Augs Qomrittae and a meber of the Remuraration Cometiee aod the Mominations Commities,

(P A Gardiner and Sir Torsy Leahy attend the Remuneration Committes meatings by waation

gy Mrid Guediner and Mr AT

FErOT anand the Auglt Commities meetngs by invtation

TR ML




report of the directors on remuneration

THE REMUMERATION COMMITTEE The Remuneration

Commmitioe 3 governed by formal Terms of Reference apreed

by the Bowd and n composed entrely of ndependent

Horeeeerubive [Dregiors Mo member of the Reawineration

Comwnittes fas gy perseral Soanlal interest other S 4

4 shargheider in the matters 1o be decded ang no dayto-day

Tolvement inorunning the business of Tesco

The remunerabon packages, noludng Conracy periods,

of Exacutive Directors are determined by the Remuneration

Conwnittes {

Conmmitteey. Tre Commutioe compised

My L Allen (Chawraan of the Commines), D # Fngmann
Me GF Pirioit and Me RV

{Epponted uly 20075 Mr I Melbourn vetyed Fom

fappointed june 200

the Commities o

the your The Commitlen ret o6

3¢ prcasany durng the yeur
My BS Agen ar

retary 10 the Lamey

Exacuinve Dhirettar of (e Group

s oanel attends the e

Bl | A Gasthnen Morerecutbae Charrean of the Group,

angd S Terey Leahy Crhaef

o Executve of the Groug bath attend

the mestings at the nvilation of the Cemmitive. Howewr,

Direcrors do not attend the reetings when thew own

wneration 1§ Leng tiscussed The Commsttes 5 suppotted

by Mg O M Chaproan, Humar Besources Director of
Tesen Stores Ll and has appointed Deloitte & Touthe ag
an endernal independent gdvison Detoitte & Touche dlso
provided advisory services in respect of VAT, PAYE, M

andd wisrnationed taxaton 1o the Groun during the your

BIRECTORS" REMUNERATION POLICY Tie Comtrulise

appiied the folowing remuneration poicy 1o all bxegutive

Erreciors dunng the year The Cornmaniee mtends that the

Ferpungsaton of aff Bxecotve Directons will connnue 10
be determined o these principles but will be subiedl i
a review by the Commmittee i the light of any legishitive,
regulatory andfor market practice changes

Business success 0 a celal environgment depernds on the

taiants of the oy tearn. but ouisianding suoess comes fom

teaymnory, i sodd relaicing hat team &l senior levels

within Teseo is vifal 1o suocess The remuneration sirategy

for Fxecutive Divectors has Deer aikkred 19 smohasise

exmetivis with & significant propertion of pe

!

related romuneration delivered o Tescn shares over

extanded tmecales

T mest the basingss obedlives of strang finana

progression and apeovemants noshareholder returns

he pohoy i B sy

saafanes bused on the resporsis skills and

experienig of the individual against a benchmark

determned by verification 1o other major FTSE {00

cornpanes and other ege retaders,

+ Anngad bonuses based on achieving stretching BPS

growth targets snd spedfic corporatg obiechves. Annual

7

wises ame pad i shares, On awand, the Exeo

Lte deter receipt of the shargs ko s further Lo

W encour it adational ma

WO,
share awiards. Further detabs are posvided below,

+ Longerternm buros based on g compinabon o relative

rreturn, and the achievernent of

sharehoide

stretehing EFS growth targets and specdic corporate

4w shaves, which

ahgrtves. Longer-terns Bonuses are p
st be beld for a Serther four years, Execitive Directorg

are erouraged 1o hold shares for fonger than four years

with gaditional mateking share gwarek. Further detals
are provached Delow

» Share aphons are granted to Executve Dredtors at

rriarket value and can only be exercsed i BPS growth

excesds B phas 99 over arty three years Trom grant,

v Executive Brrectars are required o bukd and bold a

sharehiclding with & value at least egual 1o their Bag

siary Al participation e Executive Incantive

Scherne o congitional upan meeting this Larget.

Tre Cormmitten alie ersures that the remuoneration

redationship betwoen the Main Board and Sericr Executives

af the company bolow this jevel i apprepriste. In parbiculan

any prceptonsd salary atangiments or asacd of share opliong

s are 10 be adused 1o the Corandtiee,

forr Serune Exe

5

TOTAL REMUNERATION The total remmneraion levels of

Fxees

ve Lhrectors arg normaily reviewed annvally by the

Committes, havng vegard Wy competitive market practice

i the retad sector and in the cartext of the FTSE 100

companies, which are of a camparable size 16 Tesco. As part
of the viview process, the Commitlee has aczess to, and

makes wse of, external indenendest ren

O BTVEYS.

Dwedtors

Trie tatal remunerauan packige of Erecy

comprises the folicaing ele

. bas

o shortand jong-term sedformance-related share award

i the Execotive ncentve Scheme

iated share optons awards

i the Dregutve Snare Option Scheme;

= benelis {which comprise car beneits, e assurance
chsatrity and health msurance) and

*LONSIED




in acdeBOon to the ahove elements of remuseration, Yxe

Divectors who hive complates one vaar's saevice are also

alighle 1o particinate n the ompany’s al-employes saangs-

refated share ophion scherne SAYEL probit shaning soheme
ared the share incentia plan (BAYE) on the same terms as
ail other UK emplayees
The Commidtes ronsigers that 4 hgth proportion of

Lotat revmuneration should be performance-related and at
risk o forfeiture, In addition, performance-refated reward
should be delvered mnoshares 1o cosely alipn the nterests of
sharenolders andg executives. in all oases, bage sabiry gurrently
carstitutes approxirmaialy one-third of the tetal snnual cask

fshare incentive opporiunity for fxeoutive Directors,

&

i determining tie b e between the fxed and variabie
slements of 1he Bxecdtive Directors” rersuneration packages,

the Cammittee has regard 1o rearke? prag

Al awards made 1o Executive Dhredtors under the
Exgoutive incentive Scherne and 2l nptions granted under the
Exetutive Share Option Scherme are subject 1o the satisfaction
of performance condrtions, which are explained Delow, The
Cornniiites considers that ihe mix of performance condilions
Best supports the Groupys busingss slritegy and provides & set

of broad-based and robust measures of management’s effort
ared sutass i creating shareholder value,

Teseo recognaes that i Executive Divectors are kkely

o bz e’l‘«ﬁf{“(’i TG DOComie N0 execitive (j‘féf Lore Qf Ot
orpparnes anG thatl such non-executive duties can broaden
experiens and knowledge. which will Denefit Teseo. Tharefore,
Erecutive DireClors are. subjedt o approval by the Board,
alpwed 10 ACCepl non-exeCulive appointments and retan

the fees recoved, provided Tt these appomtrasnts are

net By 10 lead 1o confiicts of mterest,

coMPLIANCE The Commitles 1 constituled and oporates
shroughoul the pericd in accordines with the Drinciples
Guthined v 1he 1 Fodes of the Francial Sarv

Authority derved from Schedule A of the Corolined Code.

in framung the remunerabion pobay, full consideration has been
g 10 the best praclice provisions sel out i Schedde B,
argared 1o the Listing Rules. The suditors report et out on
pige 43, covers the discinsures referred 1o in tit report that
are specifind for audi by the Faeuncil Servces Authority

i by the
ions 2002, Details of
Drrecions emotuments and wieresty, mcluding executive and

This report also complies with disclosures reguir

Pwrector Remuperation Report Regulat

savings-retited share options, arg sel o9t on pages 15 1o 21
The foflowing summariies the remuneration fackagts
for Exgoutive Directors, Coples of the bxegutve Directory’

contragts of erployment are svodabile for mspacton by

shareholders as requred.

EXECUTIVE INCENTIVE §CHEME [he Company Operales

& performance-related incentive stheme designed 1o proade

cownpatitive leved of reward, Awards undes e scheme are

of ¥ aooutivg

debvered in shares to further align the nterests

Uhrectors and sharehalcers,
The Carmmitten sets performance 1argets annually

for the mcentive scheme for each of the orterks noted

below, confirms achisvement of parformance and K

te e made under the scheme and directs the ganeral

sdmnstration of the swhere The Preagtive Cormanties

doptod a policy of extonding execulie ncentive
schemes 10 a vader body of senior exetulives within
the Dwoup usmg sty messures

Lang-tert share bonuses are awarded annually for
zach of the Executive Divectors, the maximum long-term
share bonus 5 equivalent 1o 75% of salary. The long-tarim

borus 1§ based on 4 combinaton of the following

pertormance condivons:

i The achievement of targets set each year for growth
i esrrangs per share over that financoal year is the
Basis for 77% of tse avard, Eanings por share has
Bean chosen to retlert the core Totus of the Groug

o aoaticutus and sustarable ewnings graowth,

A pusessment of 1al shareholder rewm s the Basis

for (5% of the avard, The 1ot shareholder return Ghare
Ty
Wt actount performarce

o

ancel of the comg

price growth and dividend perfon

ab the end of the yearn b

ol Yrhe ofevious three and fe years, is compared to
the total shareholoer retan of 4 selsgted peer proup
of L and Internaticral :mnp;mcs. (f;mprésrng Ahold,
4§ {UKY Safoway Ine (U5

Carvefour, Metra, Sileway
?;Jmi shareholder relarn has

J Samstury and Target {
pecn chosen 3s €58 & cear indicator of the value cresied
for sharehwolders. The Cormmattee corsiders 3 comparatar

group comarising farge international food retaders as the

most approprute Dass o assessing relalive performance

An gssassment of the progress Wowardy the achicvement
of speafic strategic corporate goal i the bass for 8%
of the award.

Shares awvardad have 10 be held for a perod of four years,

candiional upon continuous service with the company. The

shiare equivalent of dividends, which would have been paid an

the shares s addad o the awaryd during the deferrdl period,

Shipr - larm share honuses

are awarded anoually to each
©rs, e faximien short-term borus

ary Fhe bomus s hased

ol the Executive Direct

payvable s eqguvalent 1o 75% of

o & ombingtion of the nliowing partorraance conditic
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report of the directors on

The acnievernent of targets set cach year for growth in
£arnings per sharg cwer the relevant fnancial year is the
masis for 77% of the award,

¢ Ar assessment of achievernent agairst specific strategic
corporate goals is the basis for 23% of the award,

Tre bonus can be augmented by S0%, if the participants
elect for the trustees of the schsme 1o retain the shares
avarded for a minimum periog of Twe years, conditional
Lpon continuous service with the company The share
gquivalent of diidends, which would have been paid on
the shares, i3 added 10 the award during the deferval period.

The Executve Directors may choose to further extend
the holding period for both the short and lang-term shares
by a further three years in each case. During this nolding
period, the shares held are ingreased by 125% at the
beginning of each year based on the scheme shares held
and are conditional upon continucus empioyment with
the company This holding period may be extended subject
1 personal shareholding targets set by the Committes,
equivalent 1o shares 10 the value of one tirnes salary, being
met by the Executive Directars.

in respect of 2002/03, ine awards were long-term 68%
and short-term 72% of salary for esch Exetutive Director,
Me D E Reid was awarded 3 special bonus of £400,000 in
respect of the development of the Group's international
business. This amount has been sacnficed in rewrn for
pension augmentation.

In addition 10 providing the opporiunity Lo earn preater
rewards for superior performance, the Executive Incentive
Seheme further aligns the interests of sharehoiders and
Execative Directors by heipng them to hudd up 2
shareholding in Tesco,

SHARE OPTIONS Executive Direciors are inchuded in
Execisive Share Ootion schemes (B505). Bxecutive options
granted since {995 may only be exercised subject to the
achigvernent of earnings per share growth of at sast RP
pius 8% over three years. For future share option grants. the
axercise condition will be earnings per share growth of ot
least RPI plus 9% over three years. The Commitiee chose
1o increase the performance nurdie for future option grants
inthe light of recent changes in FTSE 100 market practice.

SAVE-AS-YOU-EARN (SAYE) Since 1981, the Group nas
operated an infand Revenue approved savings-refated share
aotion scheme {SAYE) for the benefit of empioyees including
Exesutive Directors,

Lingder this scheme, empioyses save on 2 fourweekly
basis +ia a pank/buiicing society with an opton to tuy shares

remuneration continued

inTesco PLC at the end of a three or five-year peniad 21
& diseount of up 1o 20 of the market value, There are
no performance corditions attached 10 SAYE options,

PROFIT SHARING The Group operares a WJr profit shanng
scheme for the benefit of ermployees, ndluding Executive
Direciors. Sinte March 2002, 2 new approved scheme (Snares
in Suceess) has oparated, This scheme replaced the previous
profis shaning arrangernents folloveng the Government's
decsion o discontinue such schemes and i availabie to
emplioyess with at least one year's service at the Group's year
end. Shares in the company are allocated to partcipants in
the scheme on & pro-rata Dass 1o base salary earned up 1o
Irfand Revenue approved imits {currently £3.000 per annum),
The amount of profit allocated @ the scheme is determined
by the Beard, taking account of company performance.

BUY-AS-YOU-EARN (8AYE) Since January 2002, the Group

nhas operated 30 inand Revenue approved share investment

plan {BAYE} for the beneft of employees inchuding Exective
Directers. Under this scheme, employees save fourweeldy to
buy shares at rarket vaiue in Tesco PLC,

PENSIONS Executive Directors are members of the Tesco
PLC Pension Scherme which provides a pensior of up to
two-thirds of base salary on retirement, normally al the age
of 60, dependert upon service. The scheme also provides
for dependgants’ pensions and ump sums on death in service.
The scheme i 3 defined benefit pension scheme which i
approved by the Inland Revenue.

SERVICE AGREEMENTS SirTerry Leahy Mr ) F Reid, Mr R §
Agen Mr P A Clarke, Mr | Gildersleeve, Mr AT Higginson, Mr
T} R Mason and Mr DT Potts have service agreements dated
3 Aprit 2000 with entitierment 16 notice of 24 months by the
compary and 12 months notice by the Executive. All the
Executive Directors were appointed before | March 2601,

if an Executive Director’s employment i3 terminated {other
1han pursuant 10 the notice provisions in the service contract
or by reasen of resignation or unacceptable performance

or conguct), the company will pay, by way of kguidated
damages, 8 sum equal 1o two times the aggrepate of current
base salary and the averzge of the awards made under the
Executive Incentive Scheme for the previous Twe years,

No aczount will be taken of persion or any other benafit

or emalument The tarmination payment s subject 1o the
Executive Director entening into restriciive covenants 10 apply
for a 12 month period after sueh termirgtion so as 1o protect
the goodwill of tne Dusiness.




if the termination ooturs within two years of retirement
the termination payment would be reduced accordingy
in the event of a change of contrgl, an Dxecutive Diregtor
may fErrinate the service agreement by Droviding at teasy
30 days’ rotice within three morths of sueh change of control
and in 50 doing, the compary will pay a termination payment
23 outiingd sbove

The Committee nas agreed that in future, new
appomiments of Executive Directors will normally be based
on & ngtee period of 12 months, The Commitiee roserves the
£ght 1o vary this pericd for the wiial perog of appointment.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS The remuneration of the
MNor-executive Directors is determined by the Board a5 a
whole on the recommendation of the Executive Commitiee
after considering external market research,

MNor-executide Directors have etters of appointment,
and their appointment can Be terminated by either party
withoul notice, Bach sppointment i3 subject 10 review every
thrae yvears. Non-exegutive Dirsctors receive a basie fee
plus an additional sum in respect of committes membpershig,
To reflect their additional responsibifities. supplementary fees
are a0 paid w Non-execdtives whe chair tommittees and
to the sgnior Non-executive Direstor Mr | A Gardiner has
the benefit of the use of a compary can

Tables | to 6 are audited information,
TABLE | Directors’ emoluments

PERFGRMANCE GRAPH The Group's total shareholder

raturn performance (Le share price movaments plus dividends
reivvesied) over the last fve firancial years relative o the
FTSE 100 index of companies is set out below, This index
has been selected to provide an estbished and broad-based
comparator group of retal and non-retail cormpanies of
simitér scalg to Tesco, against which the Group's TSR
performance can be measured.

\ Tesco

Fey; 48 i bat; [ZE £33 fot 4
TOTAL SHAREHOLIER RE{an
TSR is the notonat reluen from b stock or index based
a7 $hare price movemanty and declared dividensy

Fixard emolurnents

Parformance-reldled emaiurents

ot

Satary Henefs Profesharing Short-teren Longterm 21302

£00G £060 £005 €000 £606 £400

M JA Gardiner oo e e s LAY
Sir Terry Leahy 34 65 8 1002 847 2457
Mr D E Reid () ' 894 79 8 755 1074 .90
Mr R 5 Ager _ 443 8 486 &g 1285
e . S e s

Crase 'érb )

Mr [ b T e

N N e 7

(o e s g e

W BT Ry e B T . i)
5197 485 &4 5074 4569 - 15389 12,939

o) Mr L E Rew's long-term nonus moiuces go amowrt of £400.000 in respect of cverieas Dusiness prowth whith nas been sacrificed i return for gengion sugmentation,

(o} Anpuinted during The pesn
{t; Former Dirgctor

The performance ortertd s2t oot on pages 3 and 9 5 sudited information.




report of the directors on remuneration coninues

TABLE @ Gains made on share options
Nuer

30 B ONerOse {zeace) shas realiSabie

Frice at

CCELISe 2003
903 Tty 00
Sir Terey Lashy ‘AR A ; 598513 | 400,400 {3 2422
M2 £ Reig - . . . - -

Mt S Age

Me P A Clarke - - - - : - e
M | Caldersivave

SPIGOn B " -

MeT IR Masan - - - - - AL

Dhter o grant

The valug realisable Tromro shares acquired on exercise 18 the difference betwesn e e rarket walue al exercse and

axpreise price of the options, alibough the dures may have been yelained, All options were aaercised on he tame date

when the market share price was 250000, All of the opters w0 723

FEL E5REEE

Par &1 p and 23% of the optiens

at 0y and B1.0p wore exerg

sed at 59.7p and 69.0p respectively, 55 Largets related 1o growh i sarsings per share in

accorgance voth AR guidelines bave been achieved. The market shanz price ot 22 Fobeuary 2003 was 18800p 73

oree during the 52 waeks te 22 Febrvary 2007 ranged brom 16300p 1o 266250

Tre performance oiter

i for share oplions sel ot on oage 14 i audited information,

TaBLE 3 Pension details of the Directors

"'}5&!{"

Rras ine ;
oo {denrea

seorued i Lrgnafor
perin at
2 Fikeaary
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000G
2554
5373

3910
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A

s (e of
it}
teie

Me D A Charke P B o7 S ¥
Mr | Gilgersioeve 58 3

gginson (4 45
Me TR M
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el
i
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oY et e gxnge o tha caraigy o ripead by the baoanes
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TaBLE ¢ Share options held by Directars and not exercised at 22 Fehruary 2003

{1996} MNumber of chargs ot oxercise mice {pe

S
{31947

916,705
BT 5E5.39

eI 175937

S Terry Leahy 24854 h23,

ok

B

11477 : ZELTM

M F s Charke
P 1 Caldersiz

3 T Y
] - R

Me AT Fagp
M

PG pmarisin

IR 730

Suls-ronal bt

119474 - 22850

e {3 & Beif Gi5. 7 425827 (790

3075423
L820.226

MRS Ager 565335 . 994 ELHIE W03 3ABRE 11103
M- P A TINT0 VIERY BS05TS 9595 IIRISS
M | Gevders!

Mr AT Higginson w3699 .

& n

ot
e
[N

a9 . 1988 51797 439049 4zbAmy 2
' IR 1639291
R Mason @wene - YTUAST LBR0 346
I 699456 "i‘;%’ié)éf; .

5

04 D 0 Resg, 1000 e optons 4t FO05 may e aercsed @ 8

Bewns achimeeth,

3 . a8 4

TS RN G maAn i Rarings per shary ) alordence

- eeceplion of the 3830 and 151 7n op

(Y Dt of exqey i seven years from date exergsaiie. with 1

s wlug b gwpare our peart rom gdate exgrdisaiie.

[ Oty g

The performance criters for share options set out on page 1955 audited mfarmation,

TABLE § Share options held by Directors and not exercised at 22 February 2003

Savings-refated share &ption scheme {1981} Mureber of shares Vahie veal
23 Feb 2002 Granud i

Sir Terry Leahy 5810 2066

Db R o

Mr RS Ager

My P A C.idr.ko.

M ] Gikdersieeyve

15141568
1066 §.6%0 S0 15101980 3 i3
- 0573 1I6G-1930 -

h 466 3565 Taisd 1zen-vse 2 Sy

e 8,505 CUBA2T IRI0-I9EG

2566 - Fate 1910980

4,032 9272 10T 151041980

M AT Figanson
My R Mason

Mr T Porig

sy Opions granted nclude now fenily ntarests that fall o by ted dharig B yess

The subscription price for options

rarted duting the year under the savings-related share option scheme was 159.0p and the
options mature i ether 2006 {hreeyvear scheme) or 2008 (fve-year schamel. The shiares relating to options exeresad in the
voar were all refained.




report of the directors on remuneration crinues

taBLE & Directors' inerests in incentive plans

Db
of shaves
A Shires Shaees sl 22 Fely Vegting
Fiame date vt died vested 2001 date

Sir T

T0496  4n504 22553 173457 vad 2003
110598 S, 154 14465 AL 3] RO

FY059Y 90031 13,595 s
160459 130547 1943 , 150,180
nBss0n 86,845 7010 B 88975 L ORUROH
86402 338137 IR SN A - 100404
Lasos 499 ggss 68554 L iosgs

. ‘

&
L218 20494 Y 5

(laanl  aizas 344s L 4569 05
L6 04 99 BUOSS 197 L man . L0406
(Loenl B0 LS T e e
G2 N YL U oy L ogs

394 120207

Y ans
i e
135,157 - 6L

B04%6 14955
110598 84,357
130597 gigm
06 160499 117483
2004 0805 00 73234
W04 00402 262,437
2005 10598 54757 52595 110505
005 CE0S00 L4837 17276 UL iy L ososos
2005 LB 109853 145 R RVE) 0405
W06 160499 72859 o ' e T a0
006 110408 76,495 ; P104.06

2006 100402 LY

Me RS Ager 005 150196 11655 17595
- C003 10588 6533 9826

W04 iiosyT 6120y 6210 s

004 160499 83030 12,506 T w5e3 (604

WH GEOSL0 s s T toa04 - OBOBGA

W L0DA0R o ERT T ev0er ' W04 04

229 P202403
P24 12063

IR L
130504

2005

S R S R
065 iGdol FOHT £ - TIE
06 160499 5155 (252 52807
W6 11040t Wew 0817

£1.05 06
OB.05 0%

) o9 (a3 Y 1)
2006 100402 . f1853 s

The gward price on 25 April 19%6 was P82, on L May 1998 was 18667, on 8 May 2000 was 174.00p. and on 10 Aprd
007 was ZABO0p Vesting prices an 1 May 2002 and on 12 February 2003 wers 260 75p and 170250 respectiaely,

Shares awarded inchsde dividernds. taken in the form of shares and augmentation,




4
I
=

M AT Higginson

TABLE 6 Directors’ interests in incentive plans antimisd

Cysle

grchiig

T oo

farH

004

2005
HHE
2004

2006

.4” .
PR (401

2005

Aovearst

Number
of sharas
a 33 Feb

2002

Nupsiwer
of shares

Shares al 22 Feb

et d 2003

CHOS.00

sloas

160435
FOLO4L2

26,107

35),1 06

45,487

V7 7FE
55593
65 556
18,130

30028

36573

Aot

172707
20443
57,352

6?,%4_‘5_ _

{44,274

P00
O 05 04
0F D403

H 04
o

2003
2603
2004
20001
2004
1004
2005
200
2005

20045
His

0664

w06
25

50496
e
P30597
165459
0BA5.00
1007

proneg

58.0500

L0461
1604 5%

HOWOL

osns

L0598
10598
080500
160499
0RO
150402
. .i.éi 04 99
H 0401

149,904
81527
78,421
06323

65569

102625

FI9G7

§rirg
65,7702

26,093

124608

59,551
i18.293
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57,307
148,152

G004

194 120203
HERVE RN
136504
16,0404
08 0804
120404
HRNSRRIN)

FLGAGS
160405
10406
0406
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50508

e
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report of the directors on remuneration e

MNarne

date

2004
2004
2004
2004

ta i 99

1305 %7

164,59

GE.08500 56 508

37,385
79,204

H 4.0 76188 P 851

4945 VAN

PLamat
SALENY 18,803 4333
A

O3 (5 G0

160402

9,148
o aeee e
60499 24893 e
RN 13,889 P2

00402 114,274

8405

69,3739

3,330 R

Y02 - e

INyrabier
sof Shuires
Sharey @y 23 Feb
fused HIOS

e
gy PE GG
o O G5 44
1604 054

RS

LEDH D
L0408
i

42,007 B3R

LEOS.0%
(B.5.05
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TABLE 7 Disclosable interests of the Directors, including family Interests

22 e 2003

Ovdiary
LT

Crrtiare 10
:3‘.:'1’"»,\9—"(‘}
ereingsy
shares

M E Rod

MRS Ager

P A Clarke
Fe | Gldarslonye

e AT Migainson
£ R Mason

M G F Pl

[ E“@“&

677,805
3344487

h 'Q.,mfi ped
83/\ “,99 ’. >§
1529709

. 048 (.10‘3 é

_,:rié‘?bf
l %s 08t

32,%'""' ‘

f?*?g‘az

T gigdst

L997097
| 990 388

Afn ‘369
84{33*}6
e
»1Sf>,445 1191758

3 N

Options fo acguire ordinary sharey

£1998) and the savingsrelated shars

Betweon 22 Febraary 2003 and 7 Aprd 2003,

Partnersiigs Share Plan (BAYE) operated by the Group,

shawn alDVE Comprise
ien scherme (1981 (note 250

1R shares were purchased by Bxecutive Direcs

& GPLONS whiter the executiv

share: [RINLY

The ardinary shares intiude shares held as part of incentive plang shown in tatile &

wn whemnes (T4 (1994,

s as part of the




directors’ responsibilities for the preparation

of the financial statements

The Directors are reguired by the Companies Act 1985 10

prepare financial statements for each financial yesr which give
a true and far view of the state of affairs of the company and
thee Group as at the end of the firancal year and of the profit
ar s for the Fnancial year

Tes [

tors consider that io preparing the Hinancial
staterments on pages 24 to 53 the company ard Group have
used appropriate accounting pohcies, consistently apphed
andd supported by reasonabie and prudenst udgements and
estirnates. and that al accounung standards whichs they

cansicer 1o be applcable have been followed,

Trp Diwectors have responsibility for ensuring that the

- company and Group keep accourting records which disclose,

with reasanablie accuracy, 1the Bnancal position of the conpany
and Group and which enable thern (o ensure that the
Boancial statements comply with the Compames Act 1985

The Directors have genera! responsibility for taking such
sleps as are reasonably open 1© them 10 safeguard the assets
o the Group and to provent and detect fraud and other

prepgularities,




independent auditors’ report to the members

of tesco plc

W bave acdited the financal 5

nents which comprise
the Group profid ano 1oss acenunt, the balance sheets, the
cash flow statement, the stateient of total vecognised pains

angd lossess and the related nates which bave been prapared

Mo e also audited e dedlosures regquired by Part 3 of

Sehasiuke Ao 1

he Camgraries Aot T9BS canmtained in the

Oizectors’ remuneration report {the auditable part™.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBUATIES OF DIRECTORS AND

AUDITORS The Directors responsibslitios for preparing the
annual repert, the Divectors’ remuneration report and the
i Unatond

Kingdom law arxd agcoupting standards are set aut in the

fingngial statements » accordance with app

staternent of Dirgctors’ responsiliities.

Our responsitality is W audit the financs statements and

the auditabie part of the Dvedlors remuberalion repori in
avcordance with relevant legal and repulatory reguir arents
and Unaed Kingdom Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing
Hractices Board, This report. including e opiries, hus beer
g

m ancordance with Section: 215 of the Companies Agt 198%

prepared 1o and ondy lor the company's membars as & body

ang for no olher purpose We do not, in giving ths opinipn,

ik‘.{ft';![‘)[ OF 45547

e responsibitity for any ather parpose or
to any other perion o whom this repart is shown orin ta
vt hanGs Homay (ome save where expressty agreed by
GUr OO COMENE I Wriing,

W repart o you Our opimion as 10 whethar the
liranaal statements give & tree and Lar view and whether the
Erancial slatements ard the auddable part of the Direclors’
FeMNeralion report hive been properiy prepared in
accordance with the Companies At 1988 We also report 16
you il i our opinion. the Directors’ report 5 1ot consistent
with the fSnancial statements, i the company has not kept
proper accounihng reqors, if we bave not received all the
wiormation and explanations we require for our audit, or if
information: specified by law reparding Direciors’ remuneration
and transactions is not disclosed, :

W read the other information centained i the anrat
report and congider the mmplications for our report § we
bscame aware of any apparent misstalements or material
inconsstencles with the inandal statements. The wiber

informaation comprises only the Direclors report the

vesauchited part of the Dircctors’ remuneration report, the

Oharman's statement, the aperating and franog veview

snd e corporate govtinaice stateiment

W review whethor the corpe ate governange sialernent

flects the rompanys complance with the seven Srovinens

of the Combirad Code specifiod o7 our review by the Listing

Redes of the Prancsl Services Authonty, and we report if
i doss ant We are not required to conader whether the
Boards statements on internal control cover 2l risks and
conlrals, ar o farm an opinion on the effectivencss of the
companys or Group's corporate governanay procadures

or i85 risk and control orocedures,

HASIS OF AUDIT QPINION We condducien our audit i

accerdance with suditing standards msued by the Arliting

Prachces Board A0 audit includes examinalion, an 2 tegd baws,

of evidence relevant 16 the amounts and disclosures i the
francial statemenis and the auditable part of the Directory’
rermuneration report 1 also inchedes an assessment of the
sigrifizant estimates and judgemaents rde by the Uhirecters
in the preparation of the fnanta statements, ano of whether
He afvounting polides are appropraie 1o e company’s
crtumstances, convistently appied and adequately disciosed
W planned and perforced our audit 5o 23 10 oblain
& the information and explinations which we considered
necessary in order to grovide us with sufficient evidence fo
gra reasanable surance that the francial stalements and
the auditable part of the Directors remuneration report are
free from mataral mistatemeny, whether caused by fraud
o other wregalanty or error i forming our opnion we
alse evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation

of information 1 the finandal statements,

GPRINION i o Opinion:
v the financial statements give & true and fair view of
e state of affars of the company and the Group a
23 Fetruary 2003 and of the prafit and cash fiows
af the Group for the your then ended;
v ke fimancial statements have been properly prepared
N azcordance with the Companies Act {985, ard
¢ those parts Of the Directors’ remuneration report
required oy Faet 3 of Schedide 74 1o the Compames
Act 1385 have been properly propared i accordance
e Comparits Act 1985,

e mand ZV*M*-Q)UTLj LL_/ﬂ

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

with

fered Accouniants and Regislered Audaars

London 7 Aprd 2603




group profit and loss account

P
53 wests endng 22 Fesrumy 3003

SRR

SRS
003 20053 ik
&m fen im
Sales at net sefling prices : 28.352 8613
Turnover including share of joint ventunes 26,300 236 #6530
Less: s of | {93 - ﬂi‘}3j
(:roup tuesiover exctuding value 1<ided X P> 6,107 30 2633
L onatating exp : f?’l a5 } §219)
- Employes profitaharing : (Si)
- REgraLna (usts
Gogdwill amarisation i {1
C}peaazmg profit vz 1484
h perating profit of ;ouz' AERETRS A7 0
l\ei 355 or: disprosat of Pxed assets {13}
Profit an crdm.u'y activities before mterest and tixation 1545 {4}
I\lv‘ wierEst o
?toﬁt STy dznary ac:wmes before ARATion :
...... b
disposal of fived
SSLIES :
F’lof‘t an ordmary activities after taxation
M o8 t ;ruo'c;{\ -
Profit for the financial year REY #30
Dhvicdends ; {443} {396}
Retained profit for the financial year 3 A4
Porige
Earnings per share 1208
e Lo .18 G4
Underlying earnings per share’
Dsiumd earnings per share
Underlying diluted enrniﬁgs per share’
Dividend per share 5 6,30 540
Dividend cover {times) a5 AN

kacomung paticies and notes k)rmmg pare of thede financial statements are on paget 18 o 53

5¥ Toeot] Asath, e franan rons and gnodndll amor Uni

vt s L dispess!




statement of total

5E wepks ersied L2 Fobruary 2000

Can on Toreign dur raerts

Total recognised gains and fosses relating 1o the financial year

recognised gains and

losses

T ot
im £

1 .
964 S18 403

reconciliation of movements

B3 works endsd 23 Fobe gary 2003

Profiz for the financial year

{avidencs

in shareholders’ funds

Cxdin on

N Curreny agh invaslinents
Navee share capital subseribed lass expenses

Payrn s Uy shares i1 heu of cash

Net addition to s'hareﬁoiders"‘;!‘uads '

Chperarg shareholifars fund

Closir.mg shareholders’ fands

350
6516

Ageounting policies and notes forming part of these financial statemants are on pages 18 o 53,
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N .

balance sheets

77 Februry 2003

aote

Compay

03
&m

Fixed assers

Irtangibde

'Tangibi.k. i

investments £

vestments in jomd veniures i3

Share of grass assets

Lens: share of gross habdties

Goodwl

lrevestmenis @ assoniates i

18

(1.268)

232

1%

?,sjo'... -

14061

662

9%

o

445

454

Creditors:

falling due within one year i

(5.37)

2440

1053

14 809)

3005

a7

Met current liabilities

(2972}

(2.756)

(1,642

Creditors:

falling due after mare than one yesr

Pravisions for liabilities and charges &

114739

(51%)

{4,049}

8,747

(4,741

(440

WAL

(24609

Net assets

6559

5566

Capital and reserves

Called wp shave capinal 2]

Shre oo accourt 2

Oither ragerves 4

Profa and ioss atoount e

C 356
2004
40

Equity shareholders” funds

PMinority sterests

Total capital employed

6559

2409

Accounting policies and rotes forming part of these financial statements are on pages 28 wa 53.

Terry Leahy
Andrew Higginson
irectors

Financi) statements approved by the Board on 7 Aprit 2003
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group cash flow statement

B3 aesk s enied B2

SIULSy

FREVA
note fm
Nex cash ]ﬂQW from operating activities et 3375
Dividends froms joint ventures and assoctates
incon received fom ot ventures and assocates i 5
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
friterest recaived 37
Iterest o {255
erest eiemant of fingnie g {23
Nex cnsh sutflow from returns on investments and servicing of finance (218)
Taxation
Corpuration tax paid (364) (378}
Caplmi expendlture and ﬁﬂancmt investraent
ijiyr"wr‘k oz 2 fivvd el (3038 {1877
................ o
" "t"%;;:;“ af gt shares (54 {5y
Net cash ¢ oucﬂuw from capital expenditure and financial investment {2,050 IR
Acquisitions and dispasals
Purchisse of g, {414 (35
Net ¢ ; -
inwested in | "t ver tures (433 46
frvveston :r; atsocites arl other vestments N (E‘?‘
Net cash putfiow from acquisitions and disposals {436} “’f)
Equity dividends paid QF
Cash outflow before management of liquid resources and financing B3
Management of liquid resources
’Inum MeHdecreas ing short Termn deposts {13} 7

Financing

O rary shares ied for

et o oAher Koans

Naw h{m: e leases

Capias glement of finance leases re*g:a '

Net cash infiaw from financinig

{Decrease)increase in cash

Reconciliation of aet cash fiow to movement in net debt

(Decrease¥ingreste i Cash

Loss and fir; e ieﬂm.s <,w<x§ Vet subssi

Aearigiion of 4% unsed uruj desp ducount foan stock RPiand i mr\h
Ciher noscash movernments

Fors g0 exchange il ences

Increasc i net dabt

(15 i
S0 1892
52 e
o i
®) {14}
9 0
T i8
(T (7563

Opering pet delst o (3,560 {3,804
Closing net debt 1 (4,731 {3.560)

Accounting policies nud nates forming part of these financial statements are pn pages 28 w 53,
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TESCG PLC

accounting policies

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, in accordance with applicable
accounting standards and the Companies Act 1985.

As in the prior year, the Group has continued to account
for pensions and cther post-employment benefits in accordance
with SSAP 24 but has complied with the transitioral disclosure
requirements of FRS 17. These transitional disclosures are
presented in note 26.

BASIS OF CONSOLIBATION The Group financial staternents
consist of the financial statements of the parent company,
its subsidiary undertakings and the Group's share of interests
in joint ventures and asscciates. The accounts of the parent
company's subsidiary undertakings are prepared to dates
around 22 February 2003 apart from Global TH., Tesco Polska
Sp.z 0.0, Tesco Stores CR as., Tesco Stores SR as, Samsung
Tesco Co. Limited, Tesco Malaysia Sdn Bhd, Tesco Taiwan Cao.
Limited and Ek-Chaj Distribution System Co. Ltd which
prepared accounts to 31 Decernber 20072, in the opinion
of the Directors it is necessary for the above named
subsidiaries to prepare accounts to a date eartier than the
rest of the Group to enable the timely publication of the
Group financial statements.

The Group’s interests in joint ventures are accounted
for using the gross equity method, The Group's interests
in associates are accounted for using the equity method.

TURNOVER Turnover consists of sales through retail outlets
and sales of development properties excluding value
added tax.

STOCKS Stocks comprise goods held for resale and properties
held for, er in the course of, development and are valued at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Stocks in stores are
calculated at retail prices and reduced by appropriate margins
to the lower of cost and net realisable value.

MONEY MARKET DEPOSITS Money mariet deposits are
stated at cost. All income from these investments is included
in the prefit and loss account as interest receivable and
similar income.

FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION fixed assets are carried
at cost and include amounts in respect of interest paid on
funds specifically related to the financing of assets in the

course of construction, Interest is capitalised on a gross basis,

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over
the anticipated useful economic lives of the assets,
The following rates applied for the Group and are
consistent with the prior year:
+ Land premia paid in excess of the alternative use
value — at 2.5% of cost.

+ Freehold and leasehold buildings with greater than
40 years unexpired — at 2.5% of cost.

- Leasehold properties with less than 40 years unexpired
are amortised by equal annual instalments over the

unexpired period of the lease.

= Plant, equipment, fixtures and fittings and motor
vehicles — at rates varying from 0% to 33%.

coobpwitL Goodwill arising from transactions entered into
after | March 1998 is capitalised and amortised on a straight-
line basis over its useful economic life, up to a maximum of
20 years.

All goodwil! arising from transactions entered into prior

to | March 1998 has been written off to reserves.

IMPAIRMENT OF FIXED ASSETS AND GOODWILL Fixed
assets and goodwill are subject to review for impairment

in accordance with FRS |, impairment of Fixed Assets and
Goadwill', Any impairment is recognised in the profit and

ioss account in the year in which it occurs.

LEASING Plant, equipment and fixtures and fittings which

are the subject of finance leases are dealt with in the financial
statements as tangible fixed assets and equivalent habilities

at what would otherwise have been the cost of outright
purchase.

Rentals are apportioned between reductions of the
respective liabilities and finance charges, the latter being
calculated by reference to the rates of interest implicit in
the leases. The finance charges are dealt with under interest
payable in the profit and loss account.

Leased assets are depreciated in accordance with the
depreciation accounting policy over the anticipated working
lives of the assets which generally correspand to the primary
rental periods. The caost of operating leases in respect of

land and buildings and other assets is expensed as incurred.

DEFERRED TAX Deferred tax is recognised in respect of
all timing differences that have originated but not reversed
by the balance sheet date and which could give rise to an




obligation to pay more or less taxation in the future. Deferred

tax assets are recognised to the extent that they are regarded
as recoverable, They are regarded as recoverable to the
extent that on the basis of all available evidence, it is regarded
as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable
profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing
differences can be deducted. Deferrad tax is measured on a
non-discounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the periods in which timing differences reverse, based
on tax rates and laws substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date.

PENSIONS The expected cost of pensions in respect of
the Group's defined benefit pension schemes is charged to
the profit and loss account over the warking lifetimes of
employees in the schemes. Actuarial surpluses and deficits
are spread over the expected remaining working lifetimes
of employees.

POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS
The cost of providing other post-retirement benefits, which
comprise private healthcare, is charged to the profit and lfoss
account so as to spread the cost over the service lives of
relevant employees in accordance with the advice of qualified
actuaries. Actuarial surpluses and deficits are spread over the

expected remaining working lifetimes of relevant employees.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES Assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated into sterling at the financial year end
exchange rates. Profits and losses of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into sterling at average rates of exchange. Gains
and losses arising on the translation of the net assets of
overseas subsidiaries, less exchange differences arising on
matched foreign currency borrowings, are taken to reserves
and disclosed in the statement of total recognised gains and
losses. Gains and losses on instruments used for hedging are
recognised in the profit and loss account when the exposure
that is being hedged is itself recognised,
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS Derivative instruments utifised
by the Group are interest rate swaps and caps, forward
start interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps, forward
rate agreements and forward exchange contracts and
options. Termination payments made or received in respect
of derivatives are spread over the life of the underlying
exposure in cases where the underlying exposure continues
to exist. Where the underlying exposure ceases to exist, any
termination payments are taken to the profit and loss account.
Interest differentials on derivative instruments are
recognised by adjusting net interest payable, Premia or discounts
on derjvative instruments are amortised over the shorter of
the life of the instrument or the underlying exposure.
Currency swap agreements and forward exchange
contracts are valued at closing rates of exchange, Resulting
gains or losses are offset against foreign exchange gains or
losses on the related borrowings or, where the instrument is
used to hedge a committed future transaction, are deferred

until the transaction occurs or is extinguished.
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NOTE | Segmental analysis of sales, turnover, profit and net assets

The Group’s operaticns of retailing and associated activities and property development are carried cut in the UK, Republic
of Ireland, France, Hungary, Poland, Czech Republic, Slovakia, Thailand, South Korea, Taiwan and Malaysia. The results for Thaitand,
South Korea, Taiwan, Malaysia and continental European operations are for the year ended 2| December 2002.

3 2003 2002
" Sales  Turnover Net Sales  Turnover Net
1 including  excluding Operating operating  including excluding Operating  operating
\ _ -OVAT WAT profit - assets VAT VAT profit assets

£m fm - £m £m £m £m £m £m

Continuing operations

B

UK 23407 20615 1,97 8445 20685 20052 1213
Rest of Europe 3032 2,689 4] 1658 2475 2203 90
Asia T 2074 203 70 1193 1434 1398 29 916
28613 26337 1,509 - 25654 23,653 1,332
Integration — Rest of Europe : . OF -
Goodwill amortisation . 2 - (10
Operating profit 1,484 . 1,322
Share of operating profit from joint ventures : 70 ’ 47
and associates _ _
Net loss on disposal of fixed assets ‘ 043 (10)
Net interest payable ‘ {180} (153)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1,361 1201
Operating margin (prior 1o goodwill
amortisation and integration costs) 57% 5.6%
11296 9126
Net debt (note 19) 4737 {3,560}
MNet assets . 6,559 5566

Inter-segmental turnover between the geographical areas of business is not material. Turnover is disclosed by origin. There is ne
material difference in turnover by destination.

The Group's share of turnover in the joint ventures which is not inciuded in the numbers above is £193m {2002 — £15m).

NOTE 2 Analysis of operating profit

2003 2002

Em £m

Turnover excluding VAT 26,337 23,653
Cost of sales - (24340)  (21.866)
Gross profit . 1,997 1,787
Administration expenses T (543) (46M5)
Operating profit 1,484 1,322

Cost of sales includes distribution costs and store operating costs. Goodwill amortisation, integration costs and employee
| prafit-sharing are included within administration expenses,




-

NOTE 3 Employee profit-sharing

This represents the amount allocated to the trustees of the profit-sharing scheme and is based on the UK profit after interest,

before net ioss on disposal of fixed assets and taxation.

NOTE 4 Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

2003 2002
£m £m
Profit on ordinary activities is stated after charging the following:
Depreciation of tangibie fixed assets:
— owned assets - T 542 498
~ under ﬁnanc;‘l;‘ses 39 26
Goodwill amortisation - 3 0
Operating lease costs (1) 172 170
Auditors’ remuneration (b) ) !
Employment costs (note 5) 2,653 2,336
(a) Operating lease costs include £39m for hire of plant and machinery (2002 - £33m).
(b) Auditors’ remuneration for audit services amounted to £0.9m (2002 - £0.8m) and includes £C.1m (2002 - £0.Im} for the company.
The auditors also received £1.8m (2002 -~ £1.2m) in respect of non-audit services of which £1.0m (2002 — £0.4m) related to overseas aperations.
The breakdown by category was £0.7m refating to accounting and taxation advice and £1.1m relating to acquisition advice.
NOTE § Employment costs
2003 2002
£m £m
Employment costs during the year
Wages and salaries 2,385 2103
Social security costs 146 125
Other pension costs (note 26) 122 104
2,653 2,336

Number of persons employed

The average number of employees per week during the year was: UK 203,766 (2002 ~ |187,393), Rest of Europe 42,280
(2002 - 38,108), Asia 24,754 (2002 — 21,873) and the average number of fuli-time equivalents was: UK 133051 (2002 —
121,272), Rest of Europe 35,372 (2002 — 32,856) and Asia 19,759 (2002 - 17,666).

NOTE & Directors’ emoluments and interests

Details of Directors' emoluments and interests are given in the report of the Directors on remuneraticn on pages 12 to 21.

TESCO FLC
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notes to the financial statements continued

NOTE 7 Net interest payable

2003 2002
£m £m £m £
Interest receivable and similar income on money market
investments and deposits 65 66
Less nterest payable on: T
Short-term bark loans and overdrafts repayable within five years (104) B {101}
Finance charges payable on finance leases S 4 )
4% unsecured deep discount foan stock 2006 (a) {10} (%
4% RPi bonds 2016 (b) (12) (5
3.322% LP!bonds 2025 (¢) a0 i)
10%% bonds 2002 7 - (9
8% bonds 2003 B a7 (7
£% bonds 2006 9) @
714% bonds 2007 24) (24) o
6% bonds 2008 (15 )
516% bonds 2009 (18 (18)
634% bonds 2010 (10 (40)
6% bonds 2029 {12) (12}
0.7% Yen bonds 2006 (&) {13) (8)
514% Euro bonds 2008 (3 - o
434% Euro bonds 2010 h %) -
5t4% bonds 2033 Q) - -
514% bends 2019 # _
Other bonds (d) [0); (7) B
Interest capitalised 62 63
Share of interest of joint ventures and associates B (18) (i7)
(245) (219
{180) {153)
(a) Interest payable on the 4% unsecured deep discount loan stock 2006 includes £5m (2002 — £5m) of discount amortisation.
(b) interest payable on the RPI bonds includes £2m {2002 — £7m) of RF related amortisation.
(¢) Interest payable on the LPIbonds 2025 includes £1m (2002 - £2m) of RPI related amortisation.
{d} 2002 comparative has been separated out in fine with detailed disciosure this year.
NOTE 8 Taxation
2003 2002
{a) Analysis of charge in year £m £m
Current tax:
""" UK corporation tax at 30.0% (2002 — 30.0%) 382 348
T Frior year items (56) (29)
Overseas taxation S 8 g
Share of joint ventures and associates 19 5
353 336
Deferred tax; (note 213 o
Origination and reverséihat:a»rr'x‘i;lgdifferences [0} 54 35
Prior year teens " 10 -
Share of joint ventures and associates (2 -~
62 35
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 415 371

(i} The total charge for the year of £54m includes a £2m (2002 — £3m) debit to fixed assets.




NOTE & Taxation continued

{b} Factors affecting the tax charge for the year
The effective rate of corporation tax for the year of 25.9% {2002 — 28.0%) is lower than the standard rate of corporation
tax in the UK of 30.0%. The differences are explained below:

2003 2002
% %
Standard rate of corporation tax 30.0 300
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes (primarily goodwill amortisation and non-qualifring depreciation} 39 34
Capital allowances for the year in excess of deprec‘i;t-ion on qualifying ‘éssets ) " (3.3) (2.8)
Differences in overseas taxation rates 08 (0.4
Losses an propert;disposaks not available for current tax refief - 03
Prior year items h (44) i (24)
Other ftems T - 0.5 0.1}
Effective rate of corporation tax for the year 259 280

{c) Factors that may affect future tax charges
Deferred tax assets of £16m in respect of tax losses carried forward have not been recognised due to insufficient
certainty over their recoverability.

NOTE 9 Dividends

2003 2002 2003 2002

Pencefshare Pence/share £m £m

Declared interim i.87 1.67 131 15
Proposed final 433 393 32 275
620 5.60 443 390

NOTE 10 Earnings per share and diluted earnings per share

Earnings per share and diluted earnings per share have been calculated in accordance with FRS (4, ‘Earnings per Share’. The
standard requires that earnings should be based on the net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders. The caiculation for
earnings, including and excluding net loss on disposal of fixed assets, integration costs and goodwill amortisation, is based on
the profit for the financial year of £946m (2002 — £830rn). '

For the purposes of calculating earnings per share, the nurmber of shares is the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year of 989 million (2002 — 6,887 million).

The calculation for diluted earnings per share uses the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue adjusted by the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The dilution effect is calculated on the full exercise of all ordinary share options
granted by the Group, including performance-based options which the Group considers to have been earned. The calculation
compares the difference between the exercise price of exercisable ordinary share options, weighted for the period over which
they were outstanding, with the average daily mid-market closing price over the period.

2003 2002

millicn million

Weighted average number of dilutive share options 62 14
Weighted ave:;gée number of shares in issue in the period 6,989 6,887
Total number of shares for calculating diluted earnings per share 7051 7,001

TESCO PLC
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notes to the financial statements

NOTE i1 Intangible fixed assets

continued

Goodwil
£m

Cost S—
At 23 February 2000 184
Kdditions atcost 3 757
At 22 February 2003 94]
Amortisation
AL23 February 002 30
Charge for the pericd 21
At 22 February 2003 51
Net carrying value
At 22 February 2003 890
At 23 February 2002 54

(a) Goodwill arising from investments in subsidiaries in the year has been capitalised and amortised over 20 years in accordance with the provisions

of FRS 1§, "Goodwill and fntangible Assets’,

Goodwill arising from investments in joint ventures and associates has been capitalised and amortised over 20 years in
accordance with the provisions of FRS 9, Associates and Joint Ventures' and FRS 10, ‘Goodwill and Intangible Assets’ and
is included in fixed asset investrent additions {note 13).

NOTE 12 Tangible fixed assets

Plant, equipment,

fixtures and
Land and fittings and
buildings  motor vehicles Total
£m £m £m
Cost
Af 23 February 2002 "o 849 3,661 14510
Currency translation 42 17 59
Additions at cost ) 562 ) 2134
12,453 4,250 16,703
Acquisitions e T 27
Disposals {76} (229} (305)
At 22 February 2003 B 12493 4132 16,625
Depreciation
At 23 February 2002 1,365 2113 3478
Currency translation 4 10 14
Charge for period 225 356 581
1,594 2,479 4,073
Disposals (56) (220) (276)
At 22 February 2003 1,538 2,25% 3797
Net book value {b) (c) .
At 22 February 2003 16,955 1873 12,828
AL23 February 2002 9.484 548 11,632
Capital work in progress included above (d)
At 22 February 2003 553 128 68l
At 23 February 2002 348 73 42
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NOTE 12 Tangible fixed assets continued
(a) Includes £62m in respect of interest capitalised principally retating to land and building
assets. The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of finance costs capitalised
during the period was 6.5%.
{b) Net book value includes capitalised interest at 22 February 2003 of £463rm (2002 ~ £406m). .
Plant, equipment, fixtures and fittings and motor vehides subject to finance leases included
in net book value are:
Net book
Cost Depreciation value
£m £m m
At 23 February 2002 51 288 s
Movement in the period 388 181 207
At 22 February 2003 740 469 271
{c} The net book value of land and buildings camprises:
2003 2002
Em £m
Freehold N 9,992 B 8,492
Long leasehold - 50 years or more 493 503
Short leasehold — less than 50 years 470 487
At 22 February 2003 10,355 9,484
(d) Capital work in progress does not include land,
NOTE 13 Fixed asset investments
Group Company
Share in Loans to
Joint. Own Cther Group Group Joint
ventures {b}  Associates (c) shares (d) investments  undertakings {a)  undertakings ventures {b)
£m £, frm fm frn fm £m
At 23 February 2002 232 16 64 5 3,280 3,424 156
Additions 4 42 | 1225 518 2
Share of profit/(loss) of joint
ventures and associates 44 “) - - - — -
Goodwill amortisation (1 (1 - - - - -
Incorne received from joint
ventures and associates (1 - - - - - -
Disposals @ - (53 - - (627) -
At 22 February 2003 266 8 53 6 4,505 3315 {58
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notes to the financial statements continued

NOTE 13 Fixed asset investments continued

{a) The company's principal operating subsidiary undertakings are:

Share of Country of

Business equity capital incorporation

Tesco Stores Limited Retail 100% Registered in England
Tesco Property Holdings Limited Property Investment 100% Registered in England
Tesco Insurance Limited T Insurance 100% Guernsey‘
Tesco Distribution Limited Distribution T100% Registered in England-
Spen Hill Properties Limited o Praperty Development 100% Registered in Fngland
Tesco rreland Limited ] Retal 100% Republic of Ireland
Global TH. ' Retail " 99% Hungary
Tesco Palska Sp.z 00 Retail 100% Poland
Tesco Stores CR as. Retail 100% Czech Republic
Tesco Stores SR as. Retall 100% Slovakia
Samsung Tesco Co, Limited Retail 89% South Korea
Ek-Chal Distribution System Co. Lt T Retail 99% Thailang
Tesco Talwan Co. Limited Retail 100% Taiwan, Republic of China
Tesco Stores Malaysia Sdn Bhd Retail 70% Malaysia
Tesco Stores Hong Kong Limited Purchasing 100% Hong Kong_

All principal operating subsidiary undertakings, none of which are owned directly by Tesco PLC, cperate in their country

of incorporation.

(&) The Group's principal joint ventures are:

Share of issued share capital,

Country of incorporation and

Business  loan capital and debt securities principal country of operation
Shopping Centres Limited Property Investment 50% Registered in England
BLT Properties Limited -m"wi;’-;"operty Investment 50% Registered in England"
Tesco BL Heldings Limited Property Investment 50% Registered in England
Tesco British Land Property Partnership Property Investment 50% Registered in England
Tesco Personal Finance Group Limited i Personal Finance " 50% Registered in Scotland
Tesco Horne Shopping Limited ’ Mail Order Retail &0% Registered in England_
iVillage UK Limited internet 50%" Registered in Englandﬂ
dunnhumby Limited Data Analysts 53% Registered in England
Mutri Centres Limited Complementary Medicines 50% Registered in England
Taiwan Charn Yang Developments Limited Property Investment 50% Taiwan, Republic of China
Retail Property Company Limited Property Investment 50% Thailand
Tesco Card Services Limited Personal Finance 50% Thailand
The accounting periods of the joint ventures consolidated in these financial statements, range from 31 December 2002 to 28 February 2003,
* On |7 March 2003, the company acquired the remaining 50% of equity capital, taking the holding to [00%.
2003 2002
£m £ro
The net borrewings of the joint ventures, as at 22 February 2003, were as follows:
Cash and deposits T 372 301
Borrowings falling due within one year (142) (465
Other loans (588) 616
(358) (361

There is no recourse to Group companies in respect of the borrowings of the joint ventures, apart from £12m (2002 — £12m)

which has been guaranteed by Tesco PLC (note 29).
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() The Group's principal associate is:

Share of issued share capital,

Business  loan capital and debt securities

Country of incorporation and
principal country of operation

GroceryWorks Holdings Inc. Internet Retailer 35%

United States of America

The net assets and goodwill of associates are:

2003 2002

£m £

Net assets 3 2
Goodwil 15 t4
18 i6

(d} The Investment in own shares represents 32 million 5p ordinary shares in Tesco PLC (0.4% of called up share capital at
22 February 2003) with a weighted average value of £1.65 each.These shares are held by a qualifying employee share
ownership trust {QUEST) in order to satisfy options under savings-related share option schemes which become exercisable
over the next few years. The carrying value of £53m (market vaiue £53m) represents the exercise amount recetvable in
respect of these shares subscribed for by the QUEST at market value. Funding is provided to the QUEST by Tesco Stores
Limited, the company's principal operating subsidiary. The QUEST has waived its right te dividends on these shares.

NOTE 14 Stocks

Group Cornpany

2003 2002 2003 2002

£m £m £m £rm

Goods held for resale 1,122 908 - -
Development property 18 24 - -
1140 929 - -

Property disposed of included nil (2002 - nil) of interest capitalised. Accumulated capitalised interest at 22 February 2003

was £5m (2002 — £5m).

NOTE i5 Debtors

Group Company

2003 2002 7 2003 2002

£m £m £m £m

Amounts owed by Group undertakings - - -y 2,821

Prepayments and accrued income 48 47 5 33

Other debtors 507 339 128 145
Amounts owed by undertakings in which : '

Group companies have a participating interest 107 68 103 3

- " 662 454 1012 3,060

All ameunts owed by undertakings in which Group companies have a participating interest are due after more than one year.

Included in other debtors are amounts of £17m (2002 — £13m) due after more than one year.

NOTE 16 Investments

Group Company

2003 2002 2003 2002

£m £m £m £m

Money market deposits 239, 225 - 5
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NoTE 17 Creditors falling due within one year

Group Company

2003 2002 2003 2002

£m fm £m £m

Bank loans and overdrafts {a) 1,286 1,474 1,162 1,890
Trade creditors 2,196 1,830 - -
Amounts owed 1o Group undertakings - . 351 2455
Corporation tax 230 59 5 5
Other taxation and social security 170 52 - -
Other creditors 853 732 20 18
Aé.éguals andrggferred income (b) e 263 164 103 56
Finance 1ea;‘s'é;"t;::te w7 55 15 - -
Dividends S 319 283 318 283
5372 4,809 1,961 4,707

(@) Bank deposits in subsidiary undertakings of £29%9m (2002 - £1,636m) have been offset against borrowings in the parent company under a legal right

of set-off.

{6} A gain of £45m, realised in & prior yean on terminated interest rate swaps is being spread over the life of replacement swaps entered into at the same
tirne for similar periods. Accruals and deferred incame includes £nil (2002 — £2m) attributable to these realised gains

NOTE 18 Creditors falling due after more than one year

Group Company

2003 2002 2003 2002

£m £ £m £m

4% unsecured deep discount loan stock 2006 (a) . 104 9% 104 93
hnance leases {note 22} 171 14 - -
6% bonds 2006 (5) 150 150 150 150
0.7% 500n Yen bonds 2006 () 285 285 285 285
7v4% bonds 2007 (o) 325 325 375 325
6% bords 2008 (d) 250 250 250 250
514% 500m Furo bonds 2008 §) 308 - 308 -
514% bonds 2009 (6) 350 350 30 350
6%4% bonds 2010 () 150 150 150 150
4%4% 750m Euro bonds 2010 g) 477 - 477 -
4% RPl bonds 2016 g 711 210 212 210
W% bongs 2019 g 350 - 350 -
3.322% LPI bonds 2025 () o 215 162 245 162
6% bonds 2029 () T 200 200 200 200
5/4% bonds 2033 () ' 200 - 200 Z
Gther bends () o 157 191 196 191
Other loans () o T 90 355 ~ 237
4034 2,741 3772 2,609

Other creditors T o |‘5 - - - -
4045 2741 3772 2,609




NOTE 18 Creditors falling due after more than one year continued

(a) The 4% unsecured deep discaunt loan stack is redeemable at a par value of £125m in 2006,

(b} The &% bonds are redeemable at par value of £150m in 2006,

(¢) The 7¥% bonds are redeernable at a par value of £325m in 2007,

(d) The 6% bonds are redeemable at a par value of £250m in 2008,

(e} The 5/4% bonds are redeemabte at a par value of £350m in 2009,

() The 6%% bonds are redeemable at a par value of £150m in 210,

(g} The 4% RPl bonds are redeermable at a par value of £212m, indexed for increases in the
RPI over the life of the bond, in 201 6.

The 3.322% LPlbonds are redeemable at a par value of £215m, indexed for increases in the
RPY over the Iife of the bond, in 2025 The maxirnum indexation of the principal in any one
year is 5%, with a minimum of 0% The principal was increased by £51m in December 2002
{) The 6% bonds are redeemable at a par valug of £200m in 2029,

-
=

{i} These bonds are of various maturities and include foreign currency and sterling denominated
nates swapped into floating rate sterling. The 50bn Yen 2006 issue is consistent with the prior

year but has been shown separately on the face of the note,
{k} Various bank loans maturing 2005,

NOTE 19 Net debt

Group Company
2003 2002 2003 1002
£ £m £m £m
Due within cne year: Bank and other loans 11286 L474 1,162 1,890
Finance leases 55 15 - -
Due within one tc two years: Bank and other loans 30 t5 30 i5
Finance leases 53 g = -
Due within two to five years: Bank and other {cans 1,15 1,059 1.024 941
Finance leases 116 5 - -

Due otherwise than by S )
instalments after five years:  Bank and other ioans 2,718 1,653 2718 1,653
Gross debt 5375" 4230 4,934 4,499
Less: Cash at bank and in hand 399 445 - -
Money market investments and deposits 239 225 - 5
Net debt 4,737 3560 4,934 4494

TESCO FLC
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NOTE 20 Financial instruments

An explanation of the objectives and policies for holding and issuing financial instruments is set out in the operating and financial
review on pages 2 to 5, Other than where these items have been included in the currency risk disclosures, short-term debtors
and creditors have been excluded from the following analysis.

Analysis of interest rate exposure and currency of financial liabilities
The interest rate exposure and currency profile of the financial liabilities of the Group at 22 February 2003, after taking into

! account the effect of interest rate and currency swaps, were:
1 2003 2002
Floating rate Fixed rate Floating rate Fixed rate
liabilities liabilities Totat liabilities liabilities Total
£m - fm £m fm £m £m
Currency
Sterling ' 1,145 2476 3621 1358 {,508 2866
Eurc 361 3 384 16 147 263
Thai Baht 447 - 447 394 - 394
Korean Won 404 - 404 388 - 388 !
Other 432 87 519 e - 319
Gross Liabllities 2,789 2586 5375 2,575 1,655 4,230
Fixed rate financial liabiities
2003 2002
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
- average  average time average  average time
interest rate for which interest rate for which
22 Feb 2003 rate is fixed 23 Feb 2002 rate is fixed
% Years % Years
Currency 5
Sterling o 58 7 64 9
Euro i 54 3 57 2
Czech Krona 37 5 - -
Taiwanase Dollar 45 2 - -
Weighted average 58 7 6.4 9

Floating rate liabilities bear interest at rates based on relevant national LIBOR equivalents. The interest rate profile of the
Greup has been further managed by the purchase of interest rate collars with an aggregate notional principal of £135m
(2002 - nil}. The interest rate caps with an aggregate notional principal of £100m, as at the prior year end, have matured
during the year. The average strike price of the interest rate caps purchased is 6.76%, while the average strike price of the
interest rate floors sold is 2.98%, The average maturity of the collars is four and a half years. The current value of these
contracts, if realised, is a loss of £2.3m {2002 — nif). Retail Price Index funding of £212rm (2002 — £210m), maturing 201 6, is
outstanding and has been classified as fixed rate debt The interast rate payabte on this debt is 4% and the principal is linked
ta the Retail Price Index. An additional tranche of Limited Price Index funding, maturing 2025, has been issued during the year
bringing the total to £215m (2002 - £162m) and has been classified as fixed debt. The interest rate payable an this debt is
3.322% and the principal is linked to the Retail Price Index. The maximum indexation of the principal in any one yéar is 5.0%
and the minimum is 0.0%.




NOTE 2¢ Financial instruments continued

Analysis of interest rate exposure and currency of financial assets

The interest rate exposure and currency profile of the financial assets of the Group at 22 February 2003 were:

2003 202

Cash at Cash at

bank and Short-term bank and Short-term

inhand  deposits Other Totat inhand  deposits Cther Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m fm
Sterling 213 55 109 377 151 50 68 269
Other 185 184 - 370 294 175 - 469
Total financial assets 399 23% {09 747 445 225 68 738

Other financial assets are in respect of amounts owed by undertakings in which the company has a participating interest, which
atlract a rate of interest of 5.0% (2002 - 5,0%). Surplus funds are invested in gccardance with approved limits on security and
liquidity and bear rates of interest based on relevant LIBOR equivatents. Cash at bank and in hand includes non-interest bearing
cash and cash in transit.

Borrowing facilities
The Group has the following undrawn committed facilities available at 22 February 2003 in respect of which all conditions
precedent had been rnet at that date:

2003 2002

£m £m

Expiring within one year 75 -
Explrlng between one and two years . ' 756 “?33_
é;blran in more than-‘two years i 552 303
- 1,383 1,036

The facilities expiring within one year are annual facilities subject to review at various dates during the year ended 28 February 2004.
All facilities incur commitment fees at market rates and would provide funding at floating rates.

Currency exposures

Within the Group, the principal differences on exchange arising, which are taken o the profit and loss account, relate to purchases
made by Group companies in currencies other than their reporting currencies. After taking account of forward currency purchases
used to hedge these transactions, there were no significant balances on these exposures at year end. Also, rolling hedges of up to
I8 months duration are maintained against the value of investments in, and long-term intercompany loans to, overseas subsidiaries
and, to the extent permitted in S5AF 20, differences on exchange are taken to the statement of total recognised gains and fosses.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

2003 2002
Bock value Fair value  Book value Fair value
£m £m im £m
Primary financial instruments held or issued to finance the Group’s operations:
Short-term borrowings S UMy () (1489)

Lang-term borrowings

S i oy @) @
Short-term deposits 239 239
Cash at bank and in hand 3%9 399

Swap profit crystallisation N ’ - -
(4,737) (4,887) (3,562) (3,649)
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notes to the financial statements continued

NOTE 20 Financial instruments continued

Other significant financial instruments outstanding at the year end are £240m {2002 — £247m) nominal value forward foreign

exchange contracts hedging the cost of foreign currency denominated purchases, On a mark-to-market basis, these contracts

show a gain of £1m (2002 - £1m).The fair values of interest rate swaps, forward foreign exchange contracts and long-term
sterling denominated fixed rate debt have been determined by reference to prices available from the markets on which the

instruments are traded. The fair vaiues of all other items have been calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at

prevailing interest rates.

Hedges

As explained in the cperating and financial review on pages 2 to 5, the Group hedges exposures to interest rate and currency

risk. The table below shows the amount of such gains and losses which have been included in the profit and loss account for

the year and those gains and losses which are expected to be included in next year's or later profit and loss accounts.

All the gains and losses on the hedging instruments are expected to be matched by losses and gains on the hedged

transactions or positions.

Unrecognised gains and losses on instruments used for hedging and those recognised in the year ended 22 February 2003

are as follows:

Unrecognised

Deferred

Totai net Total net
Gains Losses gains/{losses) Gains Losses gains/(losses)
£m £m £m m m £m
At 23 February 2002 &9 (86) (47 pi - 2
Arising in previous years and recognised
in the year ended 22 February 2003 (17 18 ! (2 - (2)
Arising in the pericd to be recognised
in future years |70 (59 . ' - - -
At 22 February 2003 232 {127) 95 - - -
Expected to be recognised in the year T
ended 28 February 2004 33 (18} 15 - - -
NOTE 21 Provisions for liabilities and charges
Property Deferred
Provisions taxation Total
fm £m £m
At 23 February 2002 - 440 440
Currency retranslation - 2 2
Acquisition of group companies 16 (3) 13
K;éunt charged in year - 66 o 66
At 22 February 2003 16 505 521

Property provisions comprise future rents payable net of rents receivable on onerous and vacant property leases, provisions for

terminal dilapidations and provisions for future rents above market value on unprofitable stores. The majority of the provision is

expected to be utilised over the period ta 2017,

Armount provided

2003 2002
£m £m

Deferred taxation
Excess capital aIIowancé;' over depreciation 526 432
Other timing differences ) (14 8
Losses carried forward 7 -
505 440
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NOTE 22 Leasing commitments

Finance leases

£m

The future minimum finance lease payments to which the Group was committed

2003 2002
£m £m
Net amounts payable are:
v e e oo e e e 05 = BT
Eétween two and five years S i o 7 171 e
226 29
Operating leases
Land and buildings Gther
2003 2002 2003 2002
£m £m £m £m
Group commitments during the 53 weeks to 28 February 2004,
in terms of lease agreements expiring, are as follows:
Within one )‘fé‘ar o - 3 2 1 T3
Between two and five years i e o 2 3 29
After five ;;érs - ) 143 Iy 8 7
156 121 40 39

NOTE 23 Called up share capital

Ordinary shares of 5p each

Number im
Authorised at 23 February 2002 9,200,000,000 460
Authorised during the year T 432,000,000 2
Authorised at 22 February 2003 9,632,000,000 482
Allctted, issued and fully paid:
Issued at 23 February 2002 i 6994279711 350
lssued in connection with the acquisitian of T&S Stores PLC © 18740204 9
Serip dividend election e 167967 v
Share options ' o 44792492 2
Issued at 22 February 2003 ' 7.237.609,183 362

During the financial year 181.7 million shares were issued in connection with the acquisition of T&S Steres PLC (see note 33).
in addition, 61.6 million shares were jssued during the year for an aggregate consideration of £110m, which comprised £40m
for scrip dividend and £70m for share. options.

Between 22 February 2003 and 7 April 2003, options on 1,970,346 ordinary shares and 223,500 ordinary shares
have been exercised under the terms of the savings-related share option scheme (1981) and the executive share option
schemes (1984, 1994 and 1996) respectively.

As at 22 February 2003 the Directors were authorised to purchase up 1o a maximum in aggregate of 700 million ordinary shares.
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NOTE 24 Reserves

Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
£m im £m £m
Share premium account -
At 23 February 2002 2004 1870 2,004 870
Premium on issu‘;r;)f shares less costs 422 80 422 80
Scrip dividend—;\ection 39 . 54 39 54
At 22 February 2003 2465 2,004 2,445 2,004
Other reserves
At 22 February 2003 and 23 February 2002 40 40 - -
Profit and loss account
At 23 February 2002 3136 2721 255 242
Gain on foreign currency net investments 22 12 - 2
Issue of shares (2) 37) - -
Retaned profit for the financial year 503 440 i75 i
Ax 22 February 2003 3,649 3,136 430 255

Other reserves comprise a merger reserve arising on the acquisition of Hillards plc in 1987,

In accordance with section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 & profit and loss account for Tesco PLC, whose result for the
year is shown above, has not been presented in these financial statements.

The cumulative goodwill written off against the reserves of the Group as at 22 February 2003 amounted to £718m
(2002 ~ £718m). During the year, the qualifying employee share ownership trust (QUEST) subscribed for 41 million
(2002 — 51 million) shares from the company. The amount of £12m {2002 — £37m) shown above represents contributions
to the QUEST from subsidiary undertakings.

NOTE 25 Share options

Company schemes
The company had six principal share option schemes in operation during the year:

i The savings-related share opticn scheme (1981) permits the grant to employees of options in respect of ordinary shares
linked to a building society/bank save-as-you-earn contract for a term of thiree or five years with contributions from
employees of an amount between £5 and £250 per four-weekly period. Options are capable of being exercised at the end
of the three and five-year period at a subscription price not less than 80% of the middle-market quotation of an ordinary
share immediately prior to the date of grant.

The Irish savings-related share option scheme (2000} permits the grant to Irish empioyees of options in respect of ordinary
shares linked to a building society/bank save-as-you-earn contract for a term of three or five years with contributions from
employees of an amount between €12 and €320 per four-weekly period. Options are capable of being exercised at the
end of the three and five-year period at a subscription price not less than 75% of the middle-market quotation of an
ordinary share immediately prior to the date of grant.

it The executive share option scheme (1984) permitted the grant of options in respect of ordinary shares to selected
executives, The scheme expired after ten years on 9 Novemnber 1994, Options were generally exercisable between three
and ten years from the date of grant at a subscription price determined by the Board but not less than the middle-market
auotation within the period of 30 days prior to the date of grant. Some options have been granted at a discount of 15%
of the standard option price but the option holder may take advantage of that discount only if, in accordance with investor

protection ABI guidelines, certain targets related to earnings per share are achieved.




NOTE 25 Share options continued

iv The executive share option scheme (1994) was adopted on |7 October 1994.The principal difference between this
scheme and the previous scheme is that the exercise of options will normally be conditional upon the achievement of a
specified performance target related to the annual percentage growth in earnings per share over any three-year pericd.
There will be no discounted opticns gfanted under this scheme.

v The unapproved executive share option scheme (1996) was adopted on 7 june 1996, This scheme was introduced following
tegislative changes which limited the number of options which could be granted under the previous scheme., As with the
previous scheme, the exercise of options will normally be conditional upon the achievement of a specified performance
target related to the annual percentage growth in earnings per share over any three-year period. There will be no
discounted options granted under this scheme.,

vi The international executive share aption scheme was adopted on 20 May 1994.This scheme permits the grant to selected
non-UK executives of options to acquire ordinary shares on substantially the same basis as their UK counterparts. Options
are normally exercisable between three and ten years from their grant at a price of not less than the average of the middie-
market quotations for the ordinary shares for the three dealing days immediately preceding their grant and will nermally be
conditional on the achievement of a specified performance target determined by the Remuneration Committee when the

opticns are granted. There will be no discounted options granted under this scheme.

The company has granted outstanding cptions in connection with the six schemes as follows;

Savings-related share option scheme (1981) Number of Shares

executives and  under option Subscription
Date of grant employees 22 Feb 2003 price (pence)
31 October 1996 7 19944 830
T e et et e 48730 S
29 Gcteber 1998 233 29.129.809 36,0
28 October 1999 ' ' 18677 21,942,961 1510
2 October 2000 T 54015 39,329,167 198.0
8 November 200/ C T s7a99 43425070 1980
8 November 2002 63366 61702691 1590
Irish savings-related share option scheme (2000) Number of Shares

executives and  under option Subscription
Date of grant employees 22 Feb 2003 price (pence)
2 June 2000 1744 1766497 163.0
26 October 2000 774 586,659 198.0
S St 538331 S0
8 November 2002 o T3 e 159.0

Tesco PLC has taken advantage of the exemptions applicable to Inland Revenue-approved SAYE share option schemes
and equivalent overseas schemes under Urgent Issues Task Force Abstract |7 {revised 2000), 'Employee Share Schemes'.
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NOTE 25 Share options continued

Executive share option scheme (1984) Shares

MNumber of  under option Subscription
Date of grant executives 22 Feb 2003 price (pence)
10 june 1954 27 539,127 700
29 September 1994 T 2 42,000 773
Executive share option scheme (1994) Shares

Number of  under option Subscription
Date of grant executives 22 Feb 2003 price (pence)
27 April 1995 3 210,162 90.3
13 October 1995 78 1380401 040
2 June 2000 T 300 (1070677 2050
26Apr|l200| ........................................................................................................ e S I
ISAprrI2002 ettt seeet et st o = iiion T
Executive share option scheme (1996} Shares

Number of  under option Subscription
Date of grant executives 22 Feb 2003 price (pence)
3 July 1996 4 888,903 983
3 omtember 199 e e et eestee et et et s ST e
o e et et oot eeee e eees e ee e et ot e PR
70ctob 997 T - - 12 2,273,700 |5I.?-’h
20 May l998 594 (0732277 1767
30 September 1998 23 1132706 1640
28 January 1999 766 13.191,159 1780
24 May 1999 7 823247 1794
9 November 999 33 1842955 1840
30 November 1999 e 8 1098962 1730
20 April 2000 ) S 28 1,893,045 2005
26 june 2000 08 9534278 2050
26 April 2001 1185 16235399 247.0
5 Aprit 2002 ST s T ie17 737 259.0
International executive share option scheme (1994) Shares

Number of  under option Subscription
Date of grant executives 22 Feb 2003 price (pence)
7 October |9%7 52 1,004,690 151.7
21 May 1998 129 1344000 1767
28 January 1999 199 2,196,500 1780
24Mayloes 8 520,746 1794
26June I e e
26 Aprit 200) 643 4156814 7470

25 April 2002 N T 573 4,121,160 2590
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| NOTE 26 Pensions

The Group has continued to account for pensions and cther post-employment benefits in accordance with S5AP 24 and the
disclosures in note (a} below are those required by that standard, FRS 17,'Retirement Benefits’ was issued in November 2000
but js not expected to be fully mandatory for the Group untll the year ending February 2006. Prior to this, transitional
disclosures are required which, to the extent they are not given in note (&), are set out in note (b).

The full actuarial valuation carried out as at 31 March 2002 forms the basis of future funding decisions. The Company has
reviewed the results of the subsequent FRS 17 valuation and does not consider that any additicnal funding is required at
this time,

i (a) Pensien commitments
United Kingdom
| The principal plan within the Group is the Tesco PLC Pension Scheme which is a funded defined benefit pension scheme in
B l the UK, the assets of which are hield as a segregated fund and administered by trustees. The total profit and loss charge of UK
) schemes to the Group during the year was £1 14m {2002 - £97rm). A SSAP 24 pensicn prepayment of £6m (2002 — £3m) is
present in the Group balance sheet,
An independent actuary, using the projected unit method, carried out the latest actuarial assessment of the scheme at
. 31 March 2002.The assumptions that have the most significant effect on the results of the valuation are those relating to the
_/‘i rate of return on investments and the rate of increase in salaries and pensions.
The key assumptions made were a rate of return on investments of 6.75%, a rate of increase in salaries of 4% and a rate

—

of increase in pensions of 2.5%.
At the date of the last actuarial valuation, the market value of the scheme’s assets was £1,576m and the actuarial value
5 , of these assets represented 91% of the benefits that had accrued to members, after allowing for expected future increases
in earnings and pensicns in payment. The actuarial shortfall of £159m will be met wia increased contributions over a period
of ten years, being the expected average remaining service lifetime of employed members. The next actuarial valuation is
due at 31 March 2005.
The T&S Stores PLC Senior Executive Pension Scheme is a funded defined benefit scheme open to senior executives and

certain other employees at the invitation of the company. At the latest actuarial valuation at & April 2001, the market value
of the scheme's assets was £5.8m and the actuarial value of these assets represented | 0% of the benefits that had accrued
to members, after allowing for expected future increases in earnings.

Overseas
The Group operates a number of schemes worldwide, the majority of which are defined contribution schemes. The

contributions payable for non-UK schemes of £8m (2002 - £7m) have been fully expensed against profits in the current year.
1 A defined benefit scheme operates in the Republic of Irefand. At the (atest actuarial valuation at ( Aprif 2001, the market value
of the scheme's assets was £55m and the actuarial value of these assets represented 123% of the benefits that had accrued

1o members, after allowing for expected future increases in earnings.

(b) FRS 17, ‘Retirement Benefits’

The valuations used for FRS 17 have been based on the most recent actuarial valuations and updated by Watson Wyatt LLP
1o take account of the requirements of FRS 17 in order to assess the liabilities of the schemes at 22 February 2003, Schemes’
assets are stated at their market values at 22 February 2003, Buck Consultants (Irefand) Limited have updated the most recent
Republic of reland valuation. The liabitities relating to post-retirement healthcare benefits {note 27) have also been determined

in accordance with FRS 17, and are incorporated in the numbers below.

ettt ——
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MOTE 14 Pensions continued

Major assumptions

The major assumptions, on a weighted average basis, used by the actuaries were as follows:

2003 2002
% %
Rate of increase in salaries 35 36
ii;t';;gincrease in pensions in payment 23 23
Rate of increase in deferred pensions V 23 23
Rate of increase in career a\r.;;n;;ge benefits i3 uiB
Discount rate o ) 55 58
Price inflation 23 2.3—
The assets in the schemes and the expected rates of return were:
2003 2002
Long-term Long-term
rate of Market rate of Market
expacted value expected value
return % im return % £m
Equities 8.6 945 77 1,002
e o Ve oh jree
P..r.’.(.)..i.).érw ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, - Y
Other T 38 87 44 48
Total market value of assets 1,506 1,574
‘F;}ésent value of schemes' iabilities (2,275) (|?58)
Deficit in the schemes (769) {184)
Related deferred tax asset 729 57
MNet pension liability (540) {127)
2003 2002
£m £m
Group net asse
N;—-;ssets prio-:-ﬂutg;t)ension adjustments 6,559 5.562:‘7
FRS 17 persion liability (540) (127
6,019 5439
SSAP 24 pension asset (6) [€)]
Net assets after pension adjustments 6,043 5436
Group reserves
Prefit and loss reserve prior“t'griaension adjustr-ﬁ-;mts -------- 3.649.“ 3|§6
FRS 17 pension liability - Gy
3,109 3,00%
S5AP 24 pension asset (&) (3)
Profit and ioss reserve after pension adjustments 3,103 3,006




NOTE 26 Pensions continued

On full compfiance with FRS 17, and on the basis of the assumptions noted abave, the amounts that wouid have been charged
to the consolidated profit and foss account and consofidated statement of total recognised gains and Tosses for the year ended

22 February 2003 are set out below:

2003
£im

Analysis of the amount charged to operating profit
CL;r;e—nt service cost . - 149
Past service cost - i -
Total operating charge 14%
Analysis of the ameunt creditedl(cﬁ?arged) to other finance income
Expected return on pension schemes assets '7 15
Interest on pension schemes’ I|abxht|es 7777777777777777777 ' (1on
Net return 14
Analysis of the amount recogmsed in the statement of total recognised gains and Iosses
A&ua[ return less expected return on pension schemes’ assets (323)
E;&erience gams and losses arising on the schemes liabilties (53
Changes in assumpt|ons underlying the present value of the schemes’ lisbilities i {193}
Total actuarial loss recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses (56%)
Movement in deficit during the year
Deficit in schemes at beginning of the yéé; ---------------------------- (184)
Movement in year: h S T e
E'L;Frent service cos‘rcr --------------------- (149)
Contnbutions ------------ 121
Past service costs -
quu éton cost T @
C'ﬁ\er finance i ncome 0 I4n
Actuarlal L 569
Deficit in schemes at end of the year (769)

Movement in FRS |7 deficit

The increase in the net pension liability calculated under FRS 17 is principally attributable to a reduction in the market value of
assets and a reduction in the long-term AA bond yields used to discount future Fabilities, The equities held in the schemes have
been subject to significant market fluctuations and the reduction in share values accounts for the majority of the difference

between the actual and expected return on assets.

Hlstory of experience gains | and losses for the year to 22 February 2003

Percentage of schemes'’ assets (%)

Experlence gains and lasses on schemes’ liabilities;

Percentage of sc};emes liabilities (%)

Total amount recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and !osses:

Amount {£m)

Percentage of schemes’ liabilities (%)
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NoTE 27 Post-retirement benefits other than pensions

The company operates a scheme offering post-retirement healthcare benefits. The cost of providing these benefits has been
accounted for on a similar basis to that used for defined benefit pension schemes.

The liability as at 22 February 2003 of £6.6m, which was determined in accordance with the advice of qualified actuaries,
is being spread forward over the service lives of relevant employees. £0.5m has been charged to the profit and loss account
and £0.5m of benefits were paid. An accrual of £5.3m (2002 - £5.3m) is being carried in the balance sheet. It is expected
that payments will be tax deductible, at the company's tax rate, when made.

NOTE 28 Capital commitments

At 22 February 2003 there were commitments for capital expenditure contracted for, but not provided of £458m
(2002 — £674m), principally relating to the overseas store development programme,

NoTE 2% Contingent liabilities

Certain bank loans and overdraft facilities of joint ventures have been guaranteed by Tesco PLC. At 22 February 2003,
the amounts autstanding on these facilities were £12m (2002 — £12m).

The company has irrevocably guaranteed the liabilities as defined in Section 5(c) of the Republic of Ireland
(Amendment Act) 1986, of varicus subsidiary undertakings incorporated in the Repubiic of lreland.

NOTE 30 Related party transactions

During the year there were no material transactions or amounts owed or owing with any of the Group's key management
or members of their close family. .

During the year, the Group traded with its joint ventures: Shopping Centres Limited, BLT Properties Limited, Tesco BL
Haoldings Limited, Tesco British Land Property Partnership, Tesco Personal Finance Group Limited, Tesco Home Shepping Limited,
iVillage UK Limited, dunnhumby Limited, Nutri Centres Limited, Taiwan Charn Yang Developments Limited, Retail Preperty
Company Lirited and Tesco Card Services Limited. During the year, the Group also traded with its five associates: Broadfields
Management Limited, Clarepharm Limited, Grocery¥Works Holdings inc., Hussmann (Hungary) Kft ang Greenergy Fuels Limited.
The main transactions during the year were:

i Equity funding of £4m (2002 — £26m} in joint ventures and £7m (2002 — £16m) in associates.

i The Group made loans to joint ventures of £43m (2002 — £27m), and has been repaid loans by joint ventures of £5m
(2002 —~ £2m). As in the pricr year no new loans have been made from joint ventures to-the Group. The Group has
outstanding loan balances due from joint ventures of £107m (2002 ~ £68m) and outstanding loan balances due to joint
ventures of £2m (2002 — £2m) at 22 February 2003,

il The Group made purchases of £81m (2002 - £43m) from joint ventures and associates,

iv. The Group has charged joint ventures an amount totalling £42m (2002 - £26m) in respect of services, loan interest and
assets transferred, of which £8m (2002 — £3m) was outstanding at 22 February 2003.

v The Group sold a property to BLT Properties Limited for £5m. There were no transactions of this nature in the prior year.

vi

Tesco Stores Limited is a member of one or mare partnerships to whom the provisions of the Partnerships and Unlimited
Companies (Accounts) Regulations 1993 apply ('Regulations’), The accounts for thase partnerships have been consolidated
into these accounts pursuant to regulation 7 of the Regulations.
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NOTE 31 Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities

2003 2002
£m £m
Cperating profit 1,484 1,322
Depreciation and goodwill amertisation 602 534
Increase in goods held for resale {129) (93)
Decrease in development property 3 4
Increase in debtors (28) (88)
Increase in trade creditors 238 92
Increase in other creditors ) 205 67
Decrease in working capital (a) 289 182
Net cash inflow from operating activities (b} 2,375 2,038
(a) The decrease in working capital includes the impact of translating foreign currency working capital movements
at average exchange rates rather than year end exchange rates.
(b} The subsidiaries acquired during the year have not had a significant impact on group operating cashflows.
NOTE 32 Analysis of changes in net debt
At 23 Feb Orther non- Exchange At 22 Feb
2002 Cash flow Acquistions  cash changes movements 2003
£m £m £m fm £m m
Cash at bank and in hand 445 {45) - - 1 399
Money market investments and deposits 225 14 - - - 239
Bank and other loans (1,474) 319 (114) {i%9) {2} (1,286)
Finance leases (15) (26) - (14) - (55)
Debt due within one year (1.489) 293 (I (29) (2) (1,344)
Bank and other loans (2.727) (1,093) (56} 7 6 (3.863)
Finance leases (i4) {150% {2) (5 - (74
Debt due after one year (2,741) (1,243) (a8 ? & (4,034)
(3,560) (981) (172 (27) 3 {4.737)

TESCO PLC
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NOTE 33 Acquisitions

The net assets and results of acquired businesses are included in the consolidated accounts from their respective dates

of acquisition. The following tables set out the effect of the material acquisitions of the Group cormpanies 1n the year to

22 February 2003 on the consolidated balance sheet, Other acquisitions made in the year are not considered to be material
and the effects on the consolidated balance sheet have been disclosed in aggregate. Acquisition accounting has been applied
in all cases. The fair values currently established for all acquisitions made in the year to 22 February 2003 are provisional

due to the proximity of the acquisitions to the year end. Fair values will be reviewed based on additional information up to
28 February 2004. The Directors do not believe that any net adjustments resulting from such a review would have a material

effect on the Group. The goodwill arising on these acquisitions has been capitalised and is being amortised over 20 years.
HIT

HIT was acquired on | September 2002 and included in the consolidated balance sheet at 22 February 2003. The purchase
consideration was £400m.The net assets of HIT on acquisition and the provisicnal fair values were as foilows:

Adjustments

Book values to afign Fair values

of acquired accounting at date of

business policies Revaluations acquisition

£m m £m fm

Fixed assets 106 - 13 19
Stock 16 - N 15
Debtors é 7 ) 12
Cash 9 - - 9
Creditors (46) - (5) (51)
Provisions for liabilities and charges . - - (13} (13
Net assets acquired 91 7 (4 H

Consideration

Cash 400
Goodwill 309

The principal fair value adjustments made to the net book values of the assets and liabilities of HIT were the creation of a
£7m deferred tax asset to align accounting policies, a £13m revaluation of fixed assets and a £13m provision for an onerous
lease commitment. N

For the year ended 31 December 2001, HiT reported an audited profit after tax and minority interest of £7m.
For the period ended 31 August 2002, the unaudited post-tax loss was £8m based on its then accounting poficies.
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NOTE 33 Acquisitions continued

T&S Stores PLC

T&S Stores PLC was acquired on 6 January 2003 and included in the consolidated balance sheet at 22 February 2003,
The purchase consideration was £366m, The net assets of T&S Stores PLC on acquisition and the provisional fair values

were as foliows:

Adjustments

Book values to align Fair values

of acquired accounting at date of

business policies Revaluations acquisition

£m £m im £

Goodwill 95 - {35) -
Fixed assets 123 (10 ) 5) 108
Stock . &7 5 - 62
Debtors 24 - - 2_4_
Cash 24 - - 24
Creditors {28)) - - (281)
Pravisions for liabilites and charges {10} 3 - 7
Net assets/{liabilities) acquired 42 {12 (100} (70}

Consideration

Shares

Goodwill

436

The principal fair value adjustments made to the net book values of the assets and liabilities of T&S Stores PLC comprise the
revaluation of freehold property to market value, based on valuations obtained from independent experts. Adjustiments have
alse been made to align accounting policies for tangible fixed assets and stock Deferred tax has been provided on these

adjustments where appropriate.

For the year ended 3| December 2001, T&S Stores PLC reported an audited profit after tax and minority interest

of £24m and for the period ended 5 lanuary 2003, an unaudited provisional foss after tax and minerity interest of £1 Im,

based on its then accounting policies.

Of the provisions for liabilities noted in the tables above, £nil was provided by HIT for reorganisation in the year

up to acquisition, and £nif provided by T&S Stares PLC.

Other acquisitions

In respect of other acquisitions in the year, the book value of net assets acquired was £5m. In the Directors' opinion, the bogk
value of the net assets acquired is not materiatly different from their fair value, Total consideration was £17m, of which £12m
was cash. This resulted in goodwili of £12m.

TESCO PLC
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five year record

Year ended February 19992 2000 2001 2002 2003
Financial statistics £m
Group sales (8546 22773 25,654 28,613
Turnover excluding VAT
UK 15835 16958 18,372 20,052 21,615
Rest of Europe 1,167 1,374 1,756 2203 2,689
Asiz 156 464 860 1398 2033
17,158 18796 20,988 23,653 26,337
Underlying operating profic '
UK 919 993 1,100 1213 1297
Rest of Europe 48 54 70 90 144
Asia @) ) 4 29 71
965 1,043 1,174 1,332 1,509
Operating margin '
UK 5.8% 5.9% £0% 6.0% 60%
éest of Europe 4.1% 3.7% 4.0% 4.1% 5.2%
Asa (1.3)% (0.2)% 0.5% 21% 35%
Total Group 5 6% 55% 56% 5.6% 5.7%)
Share of operating profit before goodwill amortisation :
from joint ventures and associates 3 H 21 42 72
Net interest payable (90) (99 (125} (153) (180)
Underlying pre-tax profit 881 955 1,070 1,221 1,401
iﬁtegration costs (26) (6) - - (G)
Gaodwill amortisation (5) 7 8) (10) 23)
Net fass on disposal of fixed assets ) ) ) (10) (+3)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 842 933 1,054 1,201 1,361
Taxation * 237) 259) (333 (371 (415)
-[A‘:l'i-nority interests | - N - ~
Profit for the financial year ° 606 674 722 830 946
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ﬂve year record continued

Year ended February 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
Group enterprise value * 13,528 3,591 21,550 21,290 16,896
Underlying diluted earnings per share * 9.37p 10.18p 10.66p 12.14p 13.98p
Underlying earnings per share * 9.59p 1036p 10.87p 1233p 14.10p
Dividend per share 412p 448p 498p 5.40p 620p
Return on sharehalders’ funds 213% 20.9% 27% 23.2% 13.3%
Return on capitat employed * 17.2% 16.1% 16.6% 16.1% 15.3%
Group statistics

Number of stores 821 845 907 979 2,291
Total safes area ~ 000 sq ft 21,353 24,039 28362 3249 39,944
Full-time equivalent employees 126914 134,896 152210 171,794 188,182
UK retail statistics )

Number of stores 639 859 692 729 1982
Total sales area — 000 sq ft ’ 15975 16,895 17,965 18,822 21,829
Average store size (sales area ~ sq ft) ® 25,627 26,641 27,636 28,576 29,455
Full-time equivalent employees * 104,772 108,409 113998 124,272 133,051
UK retail productivity £ '

Turnover per employee ' 51,138 156427 i6l,16l 165,348 162,457
Profit per employee "' 8771 9,160 9,649 10,002 9,748
Wages per employee ! 15,271 15,600 16,087 16,821 17,020
Weely sales per sq ft ™ 21.05 2143 22.04 2233 2216

I Excludes integration casts and goodwiit
amortisation, Operating margin is based
upon turnover exclusive of VAT,

2 Underlying profit, underlying earnings
per share and underlying diluted earnings
per share exclude net loss on disposal of
fixed assets, integration costs and
goodwill amortisation.

3 2003,2002 and 200! statistics have
been calculated based on the adeption
of FRS 19 ‘Deferred Tax'.

4 Market capitalisation pius net debt.

5 Underlying profit divided by average
shareholders' funds,

& Profit divided by average capital
employed excluding net debt.

Store sizes exclude lobby and
restaurant areas.

Average store size excludes
Express and T&S stores,

Based on average number of full-
time equivalent employees in the UK.

2003 ratios have been impacted by
the acquisition of T&S Stores PLC.

Based on turnover exclusive of VAT,
underlying operating profit and total
staff cost per full-time equivalent
employee,

Based on weighted average sales
area and sales excluding property
development.

TESCO PLC 55




TABLE 6 Directors' interests in incentive plans contmued
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